
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


March 10, 2015
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Meeting on March 10, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in
the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair
David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


________________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order 


Chairman Oddo called the March 10, 2015 Board of Commissioner meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.


Invocation by Vice Chair Coston


Vice Chair Coston introduced Reverend Melvin Ware of Mount Olive Baptist Church.  Chairman Oddo asked
Reverend Ware to lead the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance after offering the Invocation.  Reverend Ware
offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Reverend Ware led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


There were no Proclamation or Recognition items for consideration on the Agenda.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #12







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 2


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no Public Hearing items for consideration on the Agenda.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Ognio asked to remove Consent Agenda #5 for discussion.
Commissioner Brown asked to remove Consent Agenda #4 for discussion.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1, 2, 3 and 6.  Commissioner Coston seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


1. Approval of staff's request to contract professional services with Nichols, Cauley & Associates for
performance of the annual audit by an outside independent audit firm for Fiscal Year 2015, at a total
cost of $74,350.00, with two one-year options to renew the contract, and approval for the County
Administrator to sign all required documents.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Approval of staff's request for the Board of Commissioners to establish the annual Budget Calendar
for Fiscal Year 2016 which begins July 1, 2015 and ends June 30, 2016.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff's recommended Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2015.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of a request from Promise Place to authorize the Chairman to sign a Local Government
Approval Form, as required by the Department of Community Affairs, affirming the organization's
efforts to obtain funding through the Emergency Solutions Grant. 


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept Consent Agenda #4 after Commissioner Brown makes his remarks. 
Commissioner Coston seconded the motion.


Commissioner Brown reminded the Board of the February 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting when
he was not allowed to provide material on the dais for that meeting.  He stated that at the time he thought
that the action was essentially “selective enforcement” or changing the rules as they currently are.  He
stated that all he wanted was a level playing field.  Commissioner Brown pointed out that Promise Place’s
request had changed, and he asked for a commitment from the Board stating that putting documents on the
dais is an acceptable practice.  He said he had a problem allowing some people to place documents on the
dais while preventing others from placing documents on the dais.  


Commissioner Ognio agreed with Commissioner Brown, in principal, but added that a favorable vote should
be taken in regard to the current request from Promise Place.  Commissioner Coston mentioned that the
issues were not comparable since the immediate change was a budgetary change, while the previous
meetings involved presenting last-minute reading material to the Board.  She asked the Board to support
the request from Promise Place.  Commissioner Barlow agreed with Commissioner Coston stating that
Promise Place does not know the County’s policies and procedures.  County Administrator Steve Rapson
gave additional explanation on why the request from Promise Place changed, and he explained that the







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 3


only change to the request was to increase its grant amount from $20,000.00 to $30,000.00.  Mr. Rapson
suggested that the discussion about adding documents to the dais could be continued at the upcoming
Board of Commissioners’ Retreat.


Commissioner Barlow amended his motion to also increase Agenda Item #4 from $20,000.00 to
$30,000.00.  Commissioner Coston seconded the amended motion.  Discussion followed.


The motion to approve a request from Promise Place to authorize the Chairman to sign a Local
Government Approval Form, as required by the Department of Community Affairs, affirming the
organization’s efforts to obtain funding through the Emergency Solution Grant, in the amount of $30,000.00
passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and the Local Government Approval Form, identified as
“Attachment 4,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff's recommendation to award a contract to low bidder, Southeastern Pressure
Grouting Quote #934-Q Grouting Lake Peachtree Spillway in the amount of $71,855.00, and to
authorize the County Administrator to sign any associated documents related to this request.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve staff's recommendation to award a contract to low bidder,
Southeastern Pressure Grouting Quote #934-Q Grouting Lake Peachtree Spillway in the amount of
$71,855.00, and to authorize the County Administrator to sign any associated documents related to this
request.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.


Commissioner Ognio briefly explained why funds were being spent on the spillway.  


Commissioner Brown stated that the current agreement Fayette County has with Peachtree City requires
that the County perform routine maintenance in exchange for the ability to draw water from Lake Peachtree
for Fayette County’s Water System.  He said some believe the grouting work breaches the level of
maintenance since the dam is about 45 years old.  He said, given the talk of the dam’s life expectancy, this
matter was becoming a capital issue instead of a maintenance issue.  Commissioner Brown said he wished
there had been a commitment from the City of Peachtree City concerning what they wanted to do with the
spillway, since, if it wanted to replace the spillway then it would have saved the Fayette County Water
System’s customers about $71,800.00.  He said it was unfortunate that a decision had not been
forthcoming from the City of Peachtree, so the County was at a juncture where it would put the grout in the
spillway, fulfill the maintenance agreement, continue with the ongoing dredging the lake, and fill the lake
with water.  He said if the city chooses to repair the spillway in the coming years, then it will have to drain
the water to some extent to repair the spillway.  


The motion to approve staff's recommendation to award a contract to low bidder, Southeastern Pressure
Grouting Quote #934-Q Grouting Lake Peachtree Spillway in the amount of $71,855, and to authorize the
County Administrator to sign any associated documents related to this request passed unanimously. 
Copies of the request and contract, identified as “Attachment 5,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


6. Approval of the February 26, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes and the March 4, 2015
Special Called Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 4


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business items on the Agenda for consideration.


NEW BUSINESS:


7. Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Neely Moody to the
Fayette County Ethics Board to fill an unexpired term and for said appointment to begin immediately
and to expire on November 7, 2016.


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Mr. Neely
Moody to the Fayette County Ethics Board to fill an unexpired term and for said appointment to begin
immediately and to expire on November 7, 2016.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  Discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Arnold Martin to the
Fayette County Planning Commission for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2015 and expiring
December 31, 2017.


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Mr. Arnold
Martin to the Fayette County Planning Commission for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2015 and
expiring December 31, 2017.  Commissioner Coston seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


9. Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mrs. Marsha A. Hopkins to
the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2015 and
expiring December 31, 2017.


Commissioner Brown moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Mrs. Marsha
A. Hopkins to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals for a three-year term beginning January 1, 2015
and expiring December 31, 2017.  Commissioners Coston and Barlow seconded the motion.  Discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Discussion of the conceptual design and cost estimate for the Justice Center Passive Park.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon briefed the Board on the conceptual design and cost estimate for the
Justice Center Passive Park.  He stated the cost estimate for Phase I of the park was $128,000.00 with the
paths being a natural, unpaved surface; likely made of wood chips.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Phase I of the Justice Center Park as proposed by the Public
Works Department in the amount of $125,000.00 utilizing budgeted item 5110H.  Commissioner Ognio
seconded the motion. 







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 5


Commissioner Brown explained how the Justice Center Park Committee came to its recommendations
based off “robust discussion.”  He said the committee was trying to find something that could be used by
the public but also by the Sheriff, courthouse staff, and for community activities.  Commissioner Brown then
provided greater detail on some of the suggested amenities to the park, and he reminded the Board that the 
high school interns worked on these suggestions during the summer.  Commissioner Brown explained the
layout of the proposed Justice Center Park and how decisions were made in regard to its layout and
accessibility, and he briefly spoke about what was planned for the future phases.


Commissioner Coston said she had a concern with the project since there are currently existing parks that
need to be enhanced as well as maintained.  She said she could not see spending $323,594.00 for Phase I
and future phases of the proposed Justice Center Park when there are other parks that need to be dealt
with but are neglected.  Commissioner Brown stated that the cost was actually $125,000.00, but
Commissioner Coston replied that the cost was greater given the project’s future phases.  Commissioner
Brown replied that there was budget for this request.


Commissioner Ognio agreed there was a budget, but he thought there needed to be “real thought” about
what is built since what is built has to be maintained.  He mentioned that there had been talks about grants
for the park, but he thought those grant opportunities were gone.  He thought the proposed park would be
good for the Fayette County Senior Center, but he acknowledged that there were needs in the existing
parks.  Commissioner Ognio then stated he would recuse himself from the vote since there is a company
associated with the request that he has done business with and he did not feel comfortable voting on that
basis.  Commissioner Coston pointed out that the Fayette Senior Services has an excellent facility and that
the Board had recently voted to help improve their facilities.  Commissioner Brown pointed out that Fayette
Senior Services was part of the Justice Center Park Committee and was favorable to the project.


Commissioner Barlow said he had attended one of the Justice Center Park Committees, and he said he
somewhere remembered a discussion about raising about 50% of the funding.  Commissioner Brown
replied that there was an effort to raise funds and that the opportunity was still available.  Commissioner
Barlow said he could not support the park as presented, but he suggested that the public could be engaged
in raising funds similarly to how other parks were created by selling veteran bricks.


Chairman Oddo said he was under the initial impression that the park was solely walking trails with natural
trails.  He said that he felt walking trails could be built for much less money than the given estimations.  He
pointed out that the park does not currently exist, but given how government operates once it is built it will
be expanded upon.  Chairman Oddo said he was concerned that there were other higher priorities that the
Board needs to worry about, specifically stormwater maintenance issues.  He said he liked the walking
trails and he wanted staff to be directed to look at Phase I item numbers 11 through 22.


Commissioner Brown amended his motion to not move forward with the project and to dedicate the 
$125,000.00, as budgeted in 5110H, to the Stormwater Restoration List.  Commissioner Barlow 
seconded the motion.  


County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that the funds could be dedicated to the Stormwater
Restoration List as moved; however, moving the funds would create political questions for the Board such
as double taxation issues with the municipalities.  Commissioner Brown withdrew his motion.







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 6


Chairman Oddo moved to direct staff to look at items numbers 11 through 22 and what they could do with
the money to create a walking path with residual funds going to Recreational Contingency Funds. 
Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  


Commissioner Brown said he understood where Chairman Oddo was coming from concerning expanding
venues, and he said he was willing to go along with Chairman Oddo’s motion.  Commissioner Coston asked
if the motion was only to proceed with walking trails.  Chairman Oddo said the motion included the sun and
shade garden and the walking path.  Commissioner Brown pointed out that Item #11 was the citizens’
garden and he reminded the Board that there was a grant from the Master Gardeners.  He suggested that
the garden be removed from consideration and that motion only focus on the path.


County Administrator Steve Rapson recommended that the Board direct staff to work in the 
parameters of what was discussed and to return with a recommendation.


Chairman Oddo amended his motion to work within the parameters that were discussed and to return to the
Board with recommendations on how to achieve the projects at a lower cost and for residual funds to be
returned to the Recreational Contingency Fund.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.


Dr. Mona MacDonald: Dr. MacDonald said she would use the walking paths, but she stated that a water
fountain and a restroom should be included in Phase I for the Justice Center Park.  Commissioner Brown
replied to Dr. MacDonald’s comments.


The motion to work within the parameters that were discussed and to return to the Board with
recommendations how to achieve the projects at a lower cost and for residual funds to be returned to the
Recreational Contingency Fund passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner Ognio abstaining from the vote.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Cherie Barlow: Mrs. Barlow, wife of Commissioner David Barlow, spoke about the heart of leadership and the five
core traits of leadership.  Mrs. Barlow closed her remarks by addressing each Commissioner, encouraging them in
their leadership roles, and asking them to guard their hearts.


Alice Jones: Mrs. Jones said she embraced those who stepped forward to be appointed into leadership positions in
the county.  She stated that she has been before many commission boards and numerous staff members and that
she listens to everything that is said.  She said the last Board of Commissioners meeting was hurtful, to the point of
tears, and she said the Board needs to work under the umbrella of its leadership.  She asked the Commissioners to
do the right thing for all the citizens.  She said that people who “look like me” did not get the resolution or its
contents, and they did not get the memo that it would be shared on the Agenda.  She said the people were bitter,
argumentative, and making unbecoming arguments.  Mrs. Jones said she learned at a young age about the process
of a democracy.  She asked for the vote to benefit for the good of the County.  She said that she has been a
proponent for Kenwood Park, and that she wants the best for the park and all of Fayette County.  She asked the
Board to listen to the constituents who want Kenwood Park to be completed.  Mrs. Jones asked the Board to work
with Commissioner Coston on the Kenwood Park project and she asked the Board to listen to its constituents.







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 7


Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke for approximately twenty-four minutes about his desire to “close the loop” on
his previous discussion concerning the budget and finances of Fayette County for its fiscal year ended June 30,
2014.  He maintained that Fayette County failed to adopt a fiscally responsible budget, gave examples of his
concern, and stated that the county has published as part of its audited financial statements that it lost $3 million as
a business enterprise.  He speculated that it appeared, based on responses he received from the Finance
Department, that the actual operating loss “may have been much larger than the one reported.”  Mr. McHugh then
spoke about his concerns with regard to the County’s General Fund, Local Maintenance and Improvement Grant
(LMIG) revenues, employee turnover rates, and reasons for turnover.  Mr. McHugh stated that his professional
opinion was that the County does not have an adopted budget that complies with the requirements of O.C.G.A. 36-
81-2 and 36-81-3.  Mr. McHugh also spoke about other concerns with opening the Old Jail Facility, the Stormwater
Utility Fund, Public Facilities Authority Bonds, and the debt service coverage factor on Water Revenue Bonds.  He
spoke about the County’s recent Aaa Rating it has received from Moody’s Investors Service, and he attributed the
improved rating to a change of rating agency’s methodology for rating municipal bonds in January 2014.  Mr.
McHugh left the meeting after giving his public comments.  A copy of Mr. McHugh’s transcript that he provided to
Commissioner Coston, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Alice Jones: Ms. Alice Jones returned to the public comment podium and asked for a copy of the budget so she
could review the material presented by Mr. McHugh.  


Temporary Recess:  Commissioner Brown asked for a brief recess.  The Board recessed at 8:45 p.m. and returned
to Official Session at 8:48 p.m.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Response to Public Comments: County Administrator Steve Rapson responded to the public comments given by
Mrs. Jones and to the concerns expressed by Mr. McHugh.


Fayette County Sheriff’s Office Medical Contract: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated staff worked with
the Sheriff’s Office in regards to its medical contract.  He said staff worked with Major Anthony Rhodes at the Jail. 
He explained that the current health provider would continue to provide the service and the Sheriff would enter into
the contract for the service. Mr. Rapson explained that the contract was roughly 8.5% less than the previous contract
resulting in a savings of about $67,000.00.


March 17, 2015 Special Called Meeting: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that earlier in the afternoon
Fayette FACTOR came to the county with a $125,000.00 grant for a Drug-Free Community Support Program.  He
said they wanted the grant on the Agenda since the deadline is on March 18, 2015.  He stated that the Board would
likely need to have a Special Called Meeting in order to approve the grant prior to the deadline.  The Board
consented to hold a Special Called Meeting on Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. to consider the Fayette
FACTOR grant.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Notification of Executive Session: County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had two items of
Threatened Litigation and Review of the February 26, 2015 Executive Session Minutes for consideration in
Executive Session.







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 8


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said he had problems with procedures where motions are made prior
to discussion.  He said the procedures did not allow for staff to make a presentation without a motion, and he asked
the Board to return to the previous way it conducted meetings since it was an efficient process.  He said the Board
was not in existence to “play games” but to serve the citizens.


Commissioner Coston: Commissioner Coston thanked the people for coming to the meeting and participating. 
She stated that there had been comments and statements concerning the Board working together.  She said she
has been working with her fellow Commissioners.  She said the Board is working collaboratively on the issues and
that everyone’s heart was in the right place.  She replied to Commissioner Ognio stating she was not on the Board to
play games but to do what is best for all of the people of Fayette County.


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown stated there had been good comments from the citizens; including
from Mr. McHugh.  He said he appreciated Mr. McHugh’s ability to speak on his issues since most governments limit
the time people are able to speak.  He said Fayette County is an open government-styled county.  Commissioner
Brown acknowledged that the auditors have found items, but he said that is the reason Fayette County has auditors. 
He added that Fayette County will make the appropriate changes and will make the necessary repairs each time the
auditors bring up various needs.  Commissioner Brown answered some of the concerns Mr. McHugh gave during
Public Comments, and he also addressed Mrs. Jones’ comments pertaining to Kenwood Park that she gave during
Public Comments.  Commissioner Brown closed his comments speaking about meeting consistency and he said all
he has ever asked for is a level playing field.


Commissioner Coston: Commissioner Coston stated that there is a meeting forthcoming with the constituents
regarding Kenwood Park, and she stated any of the Commissioners were welcome to attend.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow pointed out that the Library has a book entitled Historic Fayette


County that was written by Fayette Historian Carolyn Cary.  He stated that the book has a section concerning the
Oddo family and their accomplishments while living in Fayette County.  Commissioner Barlow spoke about his
attendance at the 17th Annual Blended Heritage Celebration at the Fayette County Library.  He stated he continues
to provide Meals on Wheels and how he attended the Religious Freedom rally in Atlanta.  Commissioner Barlow
spoke about an initiative passed by the Association County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG).  Commissioner
Barlow spoke about attending church where the pastor spoke about the 50th anniversary of the Selma March of the
sermon concerning about how Jesus Christ can heal race relations.


Chairman Oddo: Chairman Oddo stated that he was not playing games and that everyone was doing as best as
they could.  Chairman Oddo said he wished Mr. McHugh would remain in the meeting after giving his comments so
that he could hear the answers that were given to his concerns.  Commissioner Oddo spoke about a man who was
revived after following instructions provided by an Emergency 911 Officer, and he said it was one of the things that
the County does that often is not known.  Commissioner Oddo mentioned that the Georgia Department of
Transportation (GDOT) would hold a public Open House meeting at Harps Crossing Baptist Church concerning
possible road improvements at the intersection of State Route 92 and Antioch Road.  County Administrator Rapson
added the meeting would be from 4:00-7:00 p.m., and that a public notice and press release would be issued on the
meeting.







Minutes
March 10, 2015
Page Number 9


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio encouraged the citizens to contact their legislatures concerning the
transportation and fluoride bills.  He also asked the citizens to look at the remaining bills under consideration by the
state’s legislators.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Two Items of Threatened Litigation and Review of the February 26, 2015 Executive Session Minutes:
Commissioner Brown moved to recess into Executive Session.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:25 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:36 p.m. 


Return to Official Session and Authorization to Sign an Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio
moved to return to Official Session and to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit. 
Commissioner Coston seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of
the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 11,” follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


February 26, 2015 Executive Session Minutes: Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the February 26, 2015
Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Ognio moved to adjourn the March 10, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The March 10, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 9:36 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Charles W. Oddo, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26th day of March 2015.  Referenced attachments are available upon request at the County
Clerk’s Office.


___________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


March 26, 2015
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner Brown
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Fayette County's E-911 Communication Director, Cheryl
Rogers, for her thirty-six years of service in public safety and for earning the
E-911 Director of the Year Award for the State of Georgia.


2. Recognition in honor of Christian City's 50th anniversary.


3. Proclamation of Friday, March 27, 2015, as "Advo-Kids Casa Day."


4. Proclamation of April 2015 as "Safe Digging Month in Fayette County."


PUBLIC HEARING:


5. Public Hearing concerning staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing
2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License (License #C14-000473) from
Tushar Patel and Yijay H. Parikh to Kalpeshbhai Patel, doing business as
Fayetteville Chevron Food Mart, LLC., which is located at 1488 Highway 92
North, Fayetteville, Georgia.


6. Public Hearing of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC., Owner, Donna
Black, Agent, request to rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S to develop a
Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision, with said property
being located in Land Lot(s) 49, 79 and 80 of the 7th District and fronting on
Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road.  Staff recommends approval with one
(1) condition.


7. Public Hearing of Petition No. RP-055-15, Carter Rocky Fork, LLC., Owner,
and Donna Black, Agent, request to approve of the Revision of the
Recorded Final Plat for Rock Fork Subdivision to change Lot 15 from a
building lot to a common area for a centralized mail kiosk and open space,
with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 140 & 149 of the 5 District
and fronting on Rocky Fork Boulevard. 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Charles Oddo, Chairman
Pota Coston, Vice Chair


David Barlow
Steve Brown
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March 26, 2015
Page Number 2


8. Public Hearing on Ordinance 2015-05 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as amended, specifically Section 110-3  Definitions, Section 110-25 A-R,
Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 Conditional Use Approval.


9. Public Hearing on Ordinance 2015-06 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances
Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, As Amended, Specifically Article VII. Zoning Board of Appeals and Article
IX. Policies, Procedures, and Standards Governing Amendments.


10. Public Hearing on the proposed issuance of a permit for an Inert Landfill Facility located at 221 First
Manassas Mile Road, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.


CONSENT AGENDA:


11. Approval of a request from Mr. Morris Lewis, owner and developer of Trustin Lake Subdivision, to approve
the change of a road name from Edna Ruth Lane to Trustin Lake Drive.


12. Approval of the March 10, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Discussion and consideration of staff's recommendation of a revised conceptual design and cost estimate
for the Justice Center Park.  This request was last discussed at the March 10, 2015 Board of
Commissioners meeting.


NEW BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 467 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said
property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to R-70 (Single Family Residential.)


15. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of two separate parcels located at and near 475
Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to PCD (Planned
Community Development.)


16. Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request for the Board of Commissioners to approve all policy and
procedure changes by official votes during Board of Commissioner's meetings.


17. Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request to revise the County Administrator's spending limit to
$50,000.00, with said revision to include the sum total of any multi-year contracts, contingencies and
possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 could be spent on a particular
purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement.







Agenda
March 26, 2015
Page Number 3


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Code Enforcement Pete Frisina / Hank Derbyshire


Public Hearing concerning staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License (License 


#C14-000473) from Tushar Patel and Yijay H. Parikh to Kalpeshbhai Patel, doing business as Fayetteville Chevron Food Mart, LLC., 


which is located at 1488 Highway 92 North, Fayetteville, Georgia.


The Applicant has met all requirements as required in the County Code, and the applicant has been approved by Fayette County's Code 


Enforcement Department. The 2015 license is in good standing as it was issued on November 13, 2014. 


 


 


There are no outstanding violations. 


Approval of staff’s recommendation to transfer an existing 2014 Retail Alcohol, Beer and Wine License (License #C14-000473) from 


Tushar Patel and Yijay H. Parikh to Kalpeshbhai Patel, doing business as Fayetteville Chevron Food Mart, LLC., which is located at 1488 


Highway 92 North, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Public Hearing



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #5









		Code Enforcement- Chevron Foo...nsfer Agenda Request File

		Code Enforcement- Chevron Food Mart SR 92 North Alcohol Transfer Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Charles W. Oddo


Proclamation of Friday, March 27, 2015, as "Advo-Kids Casa Day."


Advo-Kids CASA is a community-based non-profit program that recruits, trains, and supports citizen-volunteers to advocate for the best 


interests of abused and neglected children in courtrooms and the community.  These children, who have been removed from their homes 


for their own safety and placed in state custody, are at greater risk for future welfare dependency, school drop-out, unemployment, 


delinquency and later incarceration, and the generational continuation of abuse and neglect. 


 


Advo-Kids CASA is a member of the National Court Appointed Special Advocates network which encompasses CASA and Guardian ad 


Litem programs throughout the United States.  Advo-Kids CASA serves abused and neglected children in the Griffin Judicial Circuit, 


which includes Fayette County. 


 


CASA volunteer advocates are directly empowered by the courts to offer judges the critical information they need to ensure that each 


child's needs are met while in foster care, and that each child remains safe while in foster care.  Above all, CASA volunteers help to 


ensure that each foster child finds a permanent home where he or she will live in the embrace of a loving family and to help ensure that 


each child has the opportunity to grow into his or her full potential.  With a CASA volunteer, a child is half as likely to languish in the foster 


care and child welfare system, and is much more likely to find a safe, permanent home.


Proclamation of Friday, March 27, 2015, as "Advo-Kids Casa Day."  Executive Director Nadine Tyft will receive the proclamation on 


behalf of Advo-Kids CASA.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #3







FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


Advo-Kids CASA Day 
 


A proclamation 
 


WHEREAS,  Neglect and abuse of children is one of the most pressing family, health and social problems in 
the United States, including failure to insure safety and support, physical abuse, sexual abuse, 
medical neglect and educational neglect; and 


 


WHEREAS,  Every day in Georgia there are 200 reports of child abuse and neglect and 33 children daily are 


the victims of confirmed abuse or neglect; and  


WHEREAS,  On any given day about 200 children in the Griffin Judicial Circuit are wards of the state in the 
complex foster care and juvenile legal systems; and 


 


WHEREAS,  Advo-Kids CASA recruits, screens, trains, and supervises community volunteers to advocate in 
the juvenile courts for the best interest of abused and neglected children in order to help 
ensure their return to safe, permanent homes as quickly as possible, to help ensure they 
remain safe while in foster care and to help ensure that these children receive all needed 
health, educational and psychological services while in foster care; and 


 


WHEREAS,  CASA volunteers are appointed by juvenile court judges to independently investigate the 
circumstances of abused and neglected children who are before the court in order to present 
bet interest recommendations that assist the court in deciding the futures of these children; 
and 


 


WHEREAS, Advo-Kids CASA has provided volunteer-based child advocacy services for 628 children since its 
inception in 2005; and  


 


WHEREAS, On March 23, 2015, Advo-Kids CASA and its volunteer corps of 50 caring and committed 
volunteer advocates celebrate ten years of service to the children of Fayette County; and 


 


NOW THEREFORE, WE THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby proclaim Monday, 
March 23 as ADVO-KIDS CASA DAY and in doing so we urge all citizens to support local and government 
agencies who work tirelessly to eliminate child abuse in Fayette County and in all of Georgia’s counties.  We 
furthermore extend our heartfelt appreciation to Advo-Kids CASA, their employees and volunteers, who 
diligently work to protect the children of our community. 


 


So proclaimed this 27th day of March 2015, 


          
              


               CHARLES W. ODDO, Chairman   





		Commissioners- Advo-Kids Proclamation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Advo-Kids Proclamation Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Charles Oddo


Recognition of Fayette County's E-911 Communication Director, Cheryl Rogers, for her thirty-six years of service in public safety and for 


earning the E-911 Director of the Year Award for the State of Georgia.


Cheryl began her career in public-safety in 1979 as a dispatcher for the Peachtree City Police Department.  In 1981 she accepted a 


position as a police officer and served in that capacity until she married fellow officer, Michael Rogers in 1983 and returned to the 


dispatch center in 1984.   


 


Working as a supervisor, then manager of the Communications Division, she was also instrumental in the achievement of National 


Accreditation of the Police Department.  In 1995 she was hired by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners to begin a consolidated 


public-safety dispatch center that would serve the needs of all public-safety agencies in Fayette County.  Cheryl dispatched Law 


Enforcement and Fire, plus trained while employed with Peachtree City.  She continued to fill in and be part of the “team” when needed 


and at times when the center fell short on personnel even after becoming the Director. She has stood strong and supported the 911 


center when making budgetary requests.  She has always been in support of the latest technology to insure the communications officers 


had the equipment necessary to do their job. 


 


Cheryl was a member of APCO (Association of Public Safety Communications Officials) and NENA (National Emergency Number 


Association).  She became a Board Officer with NENA, where she served for approximately 10 years. 


Recognition of Fayette County's E-911 Communication Director, Cheryl Rogers, for her thirty-six years of service in public safety and for 


earning the E-911 Director of the Year Award for the State of Georgia.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Cheryl will retire from Fayette County on Friday, March 27, 2015 after 36 years of service.


March 26, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #1







Fayette County 911 


Peggy R. Glaze, Assistant Director 


770-461-4357 


 


FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 


 


Cheryl Rogers to Retire from Fayette County E911 Communications 


After 36 years of working devotedly as the Communications Director for Fayette County E911, Cheryl 


Rogers, is set to retire on March 27, 2015.   


Cheryl began her career in public safety in 1979 as a dispatcher for the Peachtree City Police 


Department.  In 1981, she accepted a position as a police officer and served in that capacity until she 


married fellow officer, Michael Rogers, in 1983.   Cheryl returned to the dispatch center in 1984.  


Working at first as a supervisor then later as manager of the Communications Division, Cheryl was 


instrumental in helping the Peachtree City Police Department achieve national accreditation.   


In 1995, Cheryl was hired by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners to initiate a consolidated 


public safety dispatch center that would serve the needs of all the public safety agencies in Fayette 


County. 


Cheryl has been a member was a member of the Association of Public Safety Communications Officials 


(APCO) and of the National Emergency Number Association (NENA) where she served as a NENA Board 


Officer for approximately ten years.  


 “While we are grateful that Cheryl is transitioning into retirement, the loss of her expertise and 


knowledge will be felt for years to come,” said County Manager Steve Rapson. “Fayette County’s E-911 


operations are going to miss her guiding hand.”  


When asked what her plans are after retirement, Cheryl replied that she has a family cruise planned 


two weeks after retiring, and that she wants to spend more time camping with husband, Michael, 


while enjoying their two Dachshunds, Zoey and Coco. 


Chairman Charles Oddo commended Cheryl Rogers saying:  “The County’s Emergency 911 Center is the 


hub of communications for our public safety facilities throughout the entire county.  Cheryl was at the 


helm early in that process and has continued to serve the county with her experience, knowledge, 


professionalism, and hard work. Her tenure with the county has been beyond measure.” 


# # # 





		Commissioners- Recognition of...ogers Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Recognition of Cheryl Rogers Backup

		Cheryl Retirement- Red-Line

		Commissioners- Recognition of Cheryl Rogers Backup

		Email- Glaze- 03042015- 0927a

		Cheryl BOC














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Charles W. Oddo


Recognition in honor of Christian City's 50th anniversary.


Christian City began in 1961 when a group of concerned citizens from area Christian Churches gathered to discuss certain needs in the 


community. 


 


Christian City was incorporated in 1962 and opened the first cottage for abused and abandoned children on Valentine’s Day, 1965 on 50 


acres donated by Dr. and Mrs. Byron Harper. 


 


Since that time, the campus has expanded both in size and scope. There are more than 1,000 residents at Christian City which has now 


grown to more than 500 acres. Services provided include a Children’s Village, a thrift store, four subdivisions of  patio homes for seniors 


in a “life lease” setting, four apartment complexes for seniors on limited incomes, a 200-bed rehabilitation and nursing center, a 200-bed 


assisted living/personal care home, and two specialty units for victims of Alzheimer’s Disease. 


 


The 500-acre Christian City campus is located in Union City and offers services for seniors and a residential home for children.  Facilities 


for seniors represent the second largest active retirement community in the metro Atlanta area.  This includes the largest assisted living 


facility, plus a 5-star nursing and rehab center, recognized in US News & World Report as one of the best in the nation.


Recognition in honor of Christian City's 50th anniversary.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Several representatives from Christian City will attend the meeting to be recognized.  Among those planning to attend are Mr. Bob 


Crutchfield, Mr. Michael Johnston, and Ms. Heidi Becker.  County Administrator Steve Rapson serves on the Board for Christian City.


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #2







 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


Christian City’s 50th Anniversary 
 


A proclamation 
 


WHEREAS,  Christian City is a non-denominational, non-profit, 501(c)3 organization with a mission to 
minister to the spiritual, physical, social and psychological needs of families, with particular 
emphasis on children, the aged and infirm, by providing residential, health and social services 
according to the principles and teachings of the Christian faith; and  


 


WHEREAS,  Christian City begin in 1961 when a group of concerned citizens from area Christian Churches 
gathered to discuss certain needs in the community; and  


 


WHEREAS,  In 1965 Christian City opened its first cottage to eight boys on Valentine’s Day on 50-acres 
donated by Dr. and Mrs. Byron Harper; and  


 


WHEREAS,  The now 500-acre facility includes a Children’s Village, a thrift store, four subdivisions of patio 
homes for seniors in a “life lease” setting, four apartment complexes for seniors on limited 
incomes, a 200-bed rehabilitation and nursing center, a 200-bed assisted living/personal care 
home and two specialty units for victims of Alzheimer’s Disease; and  


 


WHEREAS,  In February 2015, Christian City celebrated its 50th Anniversary with over 1,000 guest at the 
Delta Flight Museum at Hartsfield-Jackson International Airport; and  


 


WHEREAS,  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners is pleased to congratulate Christian City for 50 
years of faithful service and its unrelenting effort to see that both children and the aged have 
enriched and rewarding lives. 


 


NOW THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, in celebration of the 50th 
Anniversary of Christian City and, in keeping with the organization’s commitment to provide services and 
ministries for the betterment of the physical as well as the spiritual needs of people, do hereby urge all 
citizens to join in celebrating this anniversary milestone and to implement Christian City’s motto of “Loving 
People…Loving People”. 


 


So proclaimed this 26th day of March 2015,   


         
 
 
              


                      CHARLES W. ODDO, Chairman  
   





		Commissioners- Christian City Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Christian City Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request for the Board of Commissioners to approve all policy and procedure changes by official 


votes during Board of Commissioner's meetings.


Commissioner Brown has written a memo asking for an official declaration that the Board of Commissioners approves all policy and 


procedure changes by vote at the BOC meetings (see "Exhibit A"). 


 


On April 25, 2013, based on Board direction given at the April 5, 2013 Retreat, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners approved 


Consent Agenda # 7:  Approval of staff's request to delegate the authority to amend Human Resources policies and procedures to the 


County Administrator and the Human Resources Director, and to delegate the authority to amend Finance policies and procedures to the 


County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer (see "Exhibit B").  The Agenda request, accompanying the minutes, is included in 


the support documentation (see "Exhibit C"). 


 


Commissioner Brown is asking the Board to "make all policy and procedure  changes subject to an official vote of the Board of 


Commissioners.


Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request for the Board of Commissioners to approve all policy and procedure changes by official 


votes during Board of Commissioner's meetings.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Thursday, March 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

            New Business #16







����������


	
������
�����
�������
�







�


�


 
��������	��


��


�



���� �����������������������


�


������ ����������� !�


�


"��� ����#��$�������������


�


���� ��%��&��#������������


�


�%'(������$$����)�#��)���������������������#��$��������������**�������))�*�)��&���#�*����#%���


����+���'&������������������+��,������������ !�����#��$������������������+��+��#�-�


�


�


����������#��������������


�


��������*��)�!���� .�����#��$�����������������������������������������%���*����������))���������%��&�


�#�������������#�������)���������*����$$��'�����������+����%��&�+���������*�)��&���#�*����#%����


��/��))������%���$$����)��**����)��$���������#��$������������0�


�


1���������������������������)2����%�#�����*�)��&���#�*����#%�������+���������������*�)������������������


�)�+�������������������#���#�+��#��*������+�*����#%������3%����+����%'����$�����+��0�����$$�����


'���))���#����$���)�����������$�����������+����*������+����2��*���������#���$���#0�


�


���������������������������������������$���#������*��*���#�����+�����%)#�'�����)�#��������


����#����#��$���&������������������#���*��')�����������*��*���#�����+���������������%����%)#�'��


*)���#����������4������)�')���+��#��$��������#�������0�


�


������)�*��')���������������$��������*������0����#/)���#��������������������������������*�)��&���#�


*����#%�������+��������������#0��5��������)���������������))��+������������*�������)�����+�����#�����


����������������*)���#�����������+��+��#��$���������0�


�



���))&����������#��$����������������%)�����)&����*����')��$�������*�)��������#�*����#%�����$�����


��%��&�+�����������#�������������#�����#�$��������������%���*��������������� .���������������#����


���������$�����%���'�)��&����%�0��"����������������*��������#�������+�������������%*�������#�����6���


#����%����������������#�����#0�


�


5���2�����������������2���))�*�)��&���#�*����#%�������+����%'(�����������$$����)�������$���������#��$�


���������������*������'��������%���'�)��&���#������*�����&0 







����������


�	
��������������
�����


�����������
����������


�


������������������







$��2��

�����&3�&'"(
�����2	���(


8��������	
���.������@68.A��:��
���������������		
��
�����-��
�����������&��������� �	��
���
8���
�����
��������&����+ �	��
���������17��&
� ���		
��
����������"�!
����!�����������"����� 
�;��������-��
���������7����
���
�
�����)����� 	����<�������&�� ��	
������������	���������
�
��
����� ����


�678����$$����


9���%5��.��
��������3
�(�������!	
������&�
������
�
������
����� �.���	&����������� ��������& 
� �&��
�
����!"�	��"����� ���
������
'
�������6�(�9��������9�;���
����� ����������
����������"�.���	&������
& ��� 
��&���������
����6�(�9�������;���
���� �&�� ���������������&��!
���������������������� ���� 
������&���������!��������
�����!��"�
��#�"��������"�&��� ���"��!������
'
�����.���	&����!
����������"���
� �&�
������
�
����
���
�
�����)����� 	���B<�������&��� ��	
���������
��	���������
�
�������� ����


8�� 9������ ���� 9���� ;���
���� � � �����$�� ����������"� 
�� � � �����&
��� ������ �A� 6-.+� �����
��
���� ���
���	������A������'�������
�������� �	���"�$��&� ��� �
�����������'
�����A�� �������)��
�(
���
������ 
	���"�*�!"���(
����&�"� ��� �
��������!��
��C�1A��	�'
�����!�
������"������������	�� ����
�����������A
����
����	
���� ��
�
:����!���� �&�� "�&������������������������#�"��������"$�����������������
���"�0���
��
#�"��������"���������
�
����	����!����� �
������
������%���#�"��'
����"���������.����/����D�������BA
����	�
���
�
���� �������� ����������#�"��������"�!"��:��
�������������
�&����.���
��������9������������"
��
 
����	
�"� �����
����0��
����#�"��������"������'������"������ ��� � ����������'�����#�"��������"������� ��
&���& "� �&���������
�����	
������� �	�
�����


1�%��@������������E��������
�� �&�����������(��!������		
��
����-��
�$��
�	����� ����
�����������	�
��
������
�������
������	�������"�������"�.��������������� �.����������.��
�
����4�	
�5����&����9���
�������
� �������5����&�� �����'
����"�����#�"��������"������
����
������ � ��� 
�������/
� �������6
���"���� 
�
������"���9���
��� �������6
���"�&���� ���	�������"�����������������"� 
���������#�"��������"������ �
������!��������
������
������������E��������������� ���� ������������		
��
�����������������������
'
��
�'��
���
'
������F��"����
�'��
�����'����
������ ��� ���������&����
��� �
���
���������E������� ����	������ ��
��������
��� 
����� � ��� � � ��� ��� �����!� 
�'��
������ �9� � �� ������ � ��� � ������������������ �������
'
�

�'��
���
'�������F��"������ �0���
��� �&�� ��������������&��(���


*���.!������������,��������
������ ������	�
��� ���
����	� 
����!����� ����(
������6�(�9��������9���!�
����"
� ��(��%����."��	�3
������+��"�����������������
��� 
	�����0���
�
���� ��
����
������ 
	���9���
�� � ��������	
�
� ���
�� �&����
��
���
�������������$������� �&������
(�"�	�(�� ���	���
�
�����9�� ��� ����	
������� ������
	�
�������0����
��� 
����
�
����������
�����!��(�&������������� �� ��(��� ������������ ���


��������!��5��


��		
��
���������&�	�'������������ ������������������		
��
����-��
���������� �	��
�����


�����
��3��������
���& �� �����'�������#�"��������"��
��
� ����������"��������(�
�������
�
������������
������5�	�����9����
�
����"���		�������� �����
������� ������������������
�
������� �����������
�	��
!��
�����9
��� ��	�
����
����&����A�� �!��
����
�	���&���
��0
�����!����� �3�
������
�������&������

��������������
��&������������ ���
�
����������������&
�� ������3�
������
���������A��	�'
���� ���
�	��
!��
��&��������
�
����"�����������7��	����"���	���"��������A�� 
�����
���&�������	�����!�
������"�&��(�����
�	�
������ �F�!����
��� "�&��B��"�������������� ���� ��&�����!�	��&
� � �'
������
'����
�����
�������
�
��
� ����& ������ ���������9�
	������� ���������������	�'�� ���
�	���!��
���







$��2��

�����&3�&'"(
�����2	���4


�����"���	
�
��������.�'�/�����������"������&
� ���������
���!��������� ���(�
���� �!��
��
������������
��������
�����
	���������� �0���
���� �����������
�����
	�������


��		
��
����-������
�� ������
������������
�$����������!���� ���� ��&��	��"�� 
���� �&�������� �'�!��
�������������������� �'���9���
�� �&�����������	��"�� 
����!����
������ �'�� �����
��������������9������� ���� 
������ ���������
!
�
�"����� ���0��"����������� ��������!���
������� ������
���
��"�������
!
�
�"�� ����������!�
������


����/���������(��!�����&��!��
���� ������"� ������������������� ������
���!��
�C���	�"��� ��!
�
�"����
�����"�	���"��������� �����	
�"� ��� �
������������ ������"$������������������
�
����
����9��� �.�'
���
��������@9.�A��


� �
�	������&����
��� ��&�������"���
�
�����!���� ���� ������"�&���
��������!
�����9���
��� ��������
�����
��(���
��
����(
�����"� 
����&�"����	���"!��"���9���
��� ������"�
��
��������"�!����
����
��������� ���� ������� ��
��������
�
��������� 
����"��������& ��!�� � �������		
��
����������"�&������ ������������� ����;����
&��'������&���� ��
	���9���
��� ������"�
��& ��
��
���� ���� ����������	
���
��������
������� ���
��&����
���'
����!�������!����������� ���� ������"�&��������& ��'��
����(������������ �!�������!�������9���
��� 
�
���
��� ������ 
������������
������"!��"�& ��
��	���"��&
� �� ������"�!���� ���� ������
���������� ���	!����
������
!
�
�"���


+ �	��
�����������'�� ��������������������17��&
� ���		
��
����������"�!
����!����


3# ����������*�����������%���������2���	���	���
�
�2�������2�����+������3�&'"(�������#
����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���0B������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����������������
+�����#


C# ����������92	����
�2��������%���������2���	���	���
�
�2�������2�����+������3�&'"(
�������#����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���DB������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����
������������+�����#


0# �������� �� 
����:
 ��A2�
� �� �������� �+� �2�+����% �� �	��� 92	�� ��
�2���
 �������
 ���
������2��
 �� �+� ��2��% ��	���
������ ��� �+� 92	�� ��
�2���
 5�������� ��� �� �������� �+�
�2�+����%���	���*�������������
���������2��
���+���2��%��	���
����������+��+���*��������
�������#����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���EB������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����
������������+�����#


D# �������� �� 
����:
 ����		�������� �� �-��� 7�� FD0(/ !��

 $�-��� �������
 �� ���� <����%
8���
����
 ���2����
� 7��2�%�����
 $�����	���� ���#� ��� ��2�!���� 8�������� 88�#� �� ��
����������	�2����GD(�(E'#D'�����2�+���=���������+��+���	����
������������������
#����%
���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���"'B������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����������������+�����#


E# �����������+������3�&'"(7��������		�

�����
�������$��2��
����+������""�&'"(7������
��		�

�����
$��2��
#


�8576�������


��176�������


0# �������� �� 
����:
 ��A2�
� �� �������� �+� �2�+����% �� �	��� 92	�� ��
�2���
 �������
 ���# �������� �� 
����:
 ��A2�
� �� �������� �+� �2�+����% �� �	��� 92	�� ��
�2���
 �������
 ���
������2��
 �� �+� ��2��% ��	���
������ ��� �+� 92	�� ��
�2���
 5�������� ��� �� �������� �+�
�2�+����%���	���*�������������
���������2��
���+���2��%��	���
����������+��+���*��������
�������#����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���EB������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����
������������+�����#







����������


	
�������������	������


����������������������


�


��������	����	������

�������


�	����	��


����������







COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of staff's request to delegate the authority to amend Human Resources policies and procedures to the County Administrator and 


Human Resources Director; and to delegate the authority to amend Finance policies and procedures to the County Administrator and 


Chief Financial Officer. 


Both the Human Resource and Finance policy and procedures were amended as part of the annual Fayette County Board of 


Commissioner Retreat. This delegation of authority will enable the County Administrator and respective Department Head to make 


changes to the existing policy and procedures in a timely and more efficient manner. 


 


Any policy and procedures will be sent via e-mail to all Board of Commissioners for their input prior to being implemented. 


Approval of staff's request to delegate the authority to amend Human Resources policies and procedures to the County Administrator and 


Human Resources Director; and to delegate the authority to amend Finance policies and procedures to the County Administrator and 


Chief Financial Officer. 


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentApril 25, 2013


ATTACHMENT 9 





		Commissioners- Policies and Procedures Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Policies and Procedures Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Consideration of Commissioner Brown's request to revise the County Administrator's spending limit to $50,000.00, with said revision to 


include the sum total of any multi-year contracts, contingencies and possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 


could be spent on a particular purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement.


Commissioner Brown has written a memo asking for an official declaration to change the spending limits of the County Administrator to 


$50,000.00. 


 


On April 25, 2013,  based on direction received at the April 7, 2013 Retreat, the Board of Commissioners approved Consent Agenda #7:  


"Approval of staff's request to delegate the authority to amend the Human Resources policies and procedures to the County 


Administrator and the Human Resources Director, and to delegate the authority to amend Finance policies and procedures to the County 


Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer."  The request passed on Consent 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent (see 


"Exhibit B").  The approved request included Policy 250.01 (see "Exhibit C").  The policy includes the following language:  "The Chairman 


or County Administrator is authorized to sign properly procured contracts that are less than $200,000 and budgeted (pg 7; H. Contracts.) 


 


Commissioner Brown states that the Board of Commissioners is ultimately responsible for the tax revenue collected by the county 


government.


Approval of Commissioner Brown's request to revise the County Administrator's spending limit to $50,000.00, with said revision to include 


the sum total of any multi-year contracts, contingencies and possible options that create a scenario where more than $50,000.00 could 


be spent on a particular purchase or multi-year contractual arrangement.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #17







�


�


����������


	
������
�����
�������
�







�
�


�


�


��������	��


��


�



���� �����������������������


�


������ ����������� !�


�


"��� ����#��$�������������


�


���� ��%��&��#������������


�


�%'(������$$����)�#��)���������������*�������+��#��*�)�����$���������%��&��#�����������,������


������ !�����#��$������������������*��*��#�-�
�


�
����������#��������������


�


.�����%�)&����������#��$�������������*�����#�������%��&��#����������������'�)��&���������������


�����������+%�������*�#�����������#�����)�/��%+����0��������+������%������������%������$$����)�������$�


�++����)��$���������#��$������������1�


�


������)�+��')���������������$��������+������1��"�����))��*���������2��%����%���#%�����'&�������%��&�


�#���������������������)&��++�������#��'%����������#��$����������������%)�����)&����+����')��$�������


��2������%����))����#�'&�������%��&�*�����������#����#��������������������$�#%����&�����%���'�)��&�


���%��1���


�


3���/���������������������+��#��*�)���������%������#��++����)����0!���������+������'����


����%���'�)��&���#������+�����&1��"����)�������%)#����)%#�������%�����)��$���&�%)��4&���������������


������*���������#�+����')���+������������������������������������������������0!��������%)#�'���+����


�����+�����%)���+%����������%)��4&������������%�)������*����1�


�


�


 
 







�


�


����������


�	
�������������
����������������
��


��������


��������������� �







$��2��

�����&3�&'"(
�����2	���(


8��������	
���.������@68.A��:��
���������������		
��
�����-��
�����������&��������� �	��
���
8���
�����
��������&����+ �	��
���������17��&
� ���		
��
����������"�!
����!�����������"����� 
�;��������-��
���������7����
���
�
�����)����� 	����<�������&�� ��	
������������	���������
�
��
����� ����


�678����$$����


9���%5��.��
��������3
�(�������!	
������&�
������
�
������
����� �.���	&����������� ��������& 
� �&��
�
����!"�	��"����� ���
������
'
�������6�(�9��������9�;���
����� ����������
����������"�.���	&������
& ��� 
��&���������
����6�(�9�������;���
���� �&�� ���������������&��!
���������������������� ���� 
������&���������!��������
�����!��"�
��#�"��������"�&��� ���"��!������
'
�����.���	&����!
����������"���
� �&�
������
�
����
���
�
�����)����� 	���B<�������&��� ��	
���������
��	���������
�
�������� ����


8�� 9������ ���� 9���� ;���
���� � � �����$�� ����������"� 
�� � � �����&
��� ������ �A� 6-.+� �����
��
���� ���
���	������A������'�������
�������� �	���"�$��&� ��� �
�����������'
�����A�� �������)��
�(
���
������ 
	���"�*�!"���(
����&�"� ��� �
��������!��
��C�1A��	�'
�����!�
������"������������	�� ����
�����������A
����
����	
���� ��
�
:����!���� �&�� "�&������������������������#�"��������"$�����������������
���"�0���
��
#�"��������"���������
�
����	����!����� �
������
������%���#�"��'
����"���������.����/����D�������BA
����	�
���
�
���� �������� ����������#�"��������"�!"��:��
�������������
�&����.���
��������9������������"
��
 
����	
�"� �����
����0��
����#�"��������"������'������"������ ��� � ����������'�����#�"��������"������� ��
&���& "� �&���������
�����	
������� �	�
�����


1�%��@������������E��������
�� �&�����������(��!������		
��
����-��
�$��
�	����� ����
�����������	�
��
������
�������
������	�������"�������"�.��������������� �.����������.��
�
����4�	
�5����&����9���
�������
� �������5����&�� �����'
����"�����#�"��������"������
����
������ � ��� 
�������/
� �������6
���"���� 
�
������"���9���
��� �������6
���"�&���� ���	�������"�����������������"� 
���������#�"��������"������ �
������!��������
������
������������E��������������� ���� ������������		
��
�����������������������
'
��
�'��
���
'
������F��"����
�'��
�����'����
������ ��� ���������&����
��� �
���
���������E������� ����	������ ��
��������
��� 
����� � ��� � � ��� ��� �����!� 
�'��
������ �9� � �� ������ � ��� � ������������������ �������
'
�

�'��
���
'�������F��"������ �0���
��� �&�� ��������������&��(���


*���.!������������,��������
������ ������	�
��� ���
����	� 
����!����� ����(
������6�(�9��������9���!�
����"
� ��(��%����."��	�3
������+��"�����������������
��� 
	�����0���
�
���� ��
����
������ 
	���9���
�� � ��������	
�
� ���
�� �&����
��
���
�������������$������� �&������
(�"�	�(�� ���	���
�
�����9�� ��� ����	
������� ������
	�
�������0����
��� 
����
�
����������
�����!��(�&������������� �� ��(��� ������������ ���


��������!��5��


��		
��
���������&�	�'������������ ������������������		
��
����-��
���������� �	��
�����


�����
��3��������
���& �� �����'�������#�"��������"��
��
� ����������"��������(�
�������
�
������������
������5�	�����9����
�
����"���		�������� �����
������� ������������������
�
������� �����������
�	��
!��
�����9
��� ��	�
����
����&����A�� �!��
����
�	���&���
��0
�����!����� �3�
������
�������&������

��������������
��&������������ ���
�
����������������&
�� ������3�
������
���������A��	�'
���� ���
�	��
!��
��&��������
�
����"�����������7��	����"���	���"��������A�� 
�����
���&�������	�����!�
������"�&��(�����
�	�
������ �F�!����
��� "�&��B��"�������������� ���� ��&�����!�	��&
� � �'
������
'����
�����
�������
�
��
� ����& ������ ���������9�
	������� ���������������	�'�� ���
�	���!��
���







$��2��

�����&3�&'"(
�����2	���4


�����"���	
�
��������.�'�/�����������"������&
� ���������
���!��������� ���(�
���� �!��
��
������������
��������
�����
	���������� �0���
���� �����������
�����
	�������


��		
��
����-������
�� ������
������������
�$����������!���� ���� ��&��	��"�� 
���� �&�������� �'�!��
�������������������� �'���9���
�� �&�����������	��"�� 
����!����
������ �'�� �����
��������������9������� ���� 
������ ���������
!
�
�"����� ���0��"����������� ��������!���
������� ������
���
��"�������
!
�
�"�� ����������!�
������


����/���������(��!�����&��!��
���� ������"� ������������������� ������
���!��
�C���	�"��� ��!
�
�"����
�����"�	���"��������� �����	
�"� ��� �
������������ ������"$������������������
�
����
����9��� �.�'
���
��������@9.�A��


� �
�	������&����
��� ��&�������"���
�
�����!���� ���� ������"�&���
��������!
�����9���
��� ��������
�����
��(���
��
����(
�����"� 
����&�"����	���"!��"���9���
��� ������"�
��
��������"�!����
����
��������� ���� ������� ��
��������
�
��������� 
����"��������& ��!�� � �������		
��
����������"�&������ ������������� ����;����
&��'������&���� ��
	���9���
��� ������"�
��& ��
��
���� ���� ����������	
���
��������
������� ���
��&����
���'
����!�������!����������� ���� ������"�&��������& ��'��
����(������������ �!�������!�������9���
��� 
�
���
��� ������ 
������������
������"!��"�& ��
��	���"��&
� �� ������"�!���� ���� ������
���������� ���	!����
������
!
�
�"���


+ �	��
�����������'�� ��������������������17��&
� ���		
��
����������"�!
����!����


3# ����������*�����������%���������2���	���	���
�
�2�������2�����+������3�&'"(�������#
����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���0B������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����������������
+�����#


C# ����������92	����
�2��������%���������2���	���	���
�
�2�������2�����+������3�&'"(
�������#����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���DB������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����
������������+�����#


0# �������� �� 
����:
 ��A2�
� �� �������� �+� �2�+����% �� �	��� 92	�� ��
�2���
 �������
 ���
������2��
 �� �+� ��2��% ��	���
������ ��� �+� 92	�� ��
�2���
 5�������� ��� �� �������� �+�
�2�+����%���	���*�������������
���������2��
���+���2��%��	���
����������+��+���*��������
�������#����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���EB������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����
������������+�����#


D# �������� �� 
����:
 ����		�������� �� �-��� 7�� FD0(/ !��

 $�-��� �������
 �� ���� <����%
8���
����
 ���2����
� 7��2�%�����
 $�����	���� ���#� ��� ��2�!���� 8�������� 88�#� �� ��
����������	�2����GD(�(E'#D'�����2�+���=���������+��+���	����
������������������
#����%
���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���"'B������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����������������+�����#


E# �����������+������3�&'"(7��������		�

�����
�������$��2��
����+������""�&'"(7������
��		�

�����
$��2��
#


�8576�������


��176�������


0# �������� �� 
����:
 ��A2�
� �� �������� �+� �2�+����% �� �	��� 92	�� ��
�2���
 �������
 ���# �������� �� 
����:
 ��A2�
� �� �������� �+� �2�+����% �� �	��� 92	�� ��
�2���
 �������
 ���
������2��
 �� �+� ��2��% ��	���
������ ��� �+� 92	�� ��
�2���
 5�������� ��� �� �������� �+�
�2�+����%���	���*�������������
���������2��
���+���2��%��	���
����������+��+���*��������
�������#����%���+���A2�
�������������
)�����+	���EB������-
�+�
�	��2��
����
	�����
������������+�����#







�


�


����������


	
�������������������������


���� ��
�	�!��"�#�$���
����%��
�� ��&�







COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of Finance policy and procedure amendments as outlined during the April 5, 2013 Retreat. 


                                                   


The following finance policy and procedure amendments were presented and discussed during the annual Fayette County Board of 


Commissioner Retreat. 


 


a. 210.01 P-Card (Pages 1-3 of the backup) 


b. 250.01 Purchasing Policy & Procedures (Pages 6-13 of the backup) 


c. 300.09 Travel (Pages 14-26 of the backup) 


 


These policy and procedure amendments are presented for your formal consideration and approval.


Approval of Finance policy and procedure amendments as outlined.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentApril 25, 2013


ATTACHMENT 7 







            Page 1 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


FAYETTE COUNTY               


POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 


Purchasing – Procuring Goods / Services 


Policy & Procedures 


250.01 


PURPOSE 


The Fayette County Purchasing Department procures materials, supplies, equipment 
and services for county departments, ensuring quality, timely delivery and maximum 
dollar savings under the supervision of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  
One of the main functions of the Purchasing Department is saving taxpayer dollars. 


The Purchasing Department strives to treat vendors and contractors fairly and equitably, 
while encouraging competition.  The Purchasing Department ensures objectivity in 
awards to responsive and responsible bidders and provides assistance to all county 
departments in the planning and procurement process. 


The Fayette County Purchasing Department handles surplus sales through auctions.  
This is usually a combined governmental auction that involves some other Fayette 
County governments.  This information will be available on the Fayette County website 
prior to each auction. 


The public sector purchasing function faces the dual challenges of observing laws 
created by legislation and by case law announced through judges’ decisions, while 
responding to a changing, increasingly complex public service environment.  Purchasing 
functions must go beyond the old model of process management, and provide support 
services for their departmental customers.  This includes flexible processes that respond 
to the varied and changing needs of the departments, as well as administrative 
efficiencies that acknowledge the reality of demands outpacing revenues.  The policy 
and procedures in this Section are designed to meet these challenges. 


DEFINITIONS 


  Originating department – The department for which a product or service is being 
purchased. 


  Open market purchase – A purchase costing less than the formal procurement 
threshold for requiring competitive sealed bids or proposals. 


  Formal procurement threshold – The dollar amount above which formal sealed 
bids or proposals are required. 


  Quote – An offered price from a vendor for an open market purchase.  A quote 
may be verbal or written, depending on the dollar amount involved.  For purposes 
of obtaining the required number of quotes, a “no-bid” response or non-response 
may be counted as a quote. 


  ITB – Invitation to bid.  This results in selection of the lowest bid from a 
responsive, responsible bidder. 


  RFP – Request for proposals.  This results in selection of a winning proposal by 
evaluation of criteria specified in the RFP. 







            Page 2 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


POLICY 


There shall be a consistent and uniform process for the procurement of materials, 
supplies equipment and services for the Fayette County departments. 


The Purchasing Department will partner with county departments, vendors, and 
stakeholders to achieve the following results: 


 County departments will receive appropriate products and services in a timely 
manner, 


 Vendors will have access to county business, opportunity to compete, and equity 
in their dealings with the county, and 


 Stakeholders, including the Board of Commissioners, the County Administrator, 
and taxpayers, will realize the efficiencies, savings, and business transparency 
they require. 


These results will be obtained by observance of the procedures listed below, and in 
other sections of the Policies and Procedures Manual. 


Note: The policy and procedures herein do not apply to the Sheriff’s Office or other 
elected officials when using a separate procurement system. 


PROCEDURES 


In addition to emergency requisitions which are processed just as soon as possible upon 
receipt, there are two other main methods of procuring goods and services, i.e. open 
market purchases and invitations for sealed bids / requests for proposals. 


The open market method of purchase is used for those requisitions that total up to 
$19,999.99.  They are handled informally in that quotes can be obtained, by fax, mail or 
verbally in some situations.  These open market purchases do not require formal 
advertising, and they do not require additional approval by the Board of Commissioners. 


A.  Open-Market Purchases


Purchases that have a total cost of less than the formal procurement threshold of 
$200,000 are known as open-market purchases.  Open market purchases are not 
required to go through a sealed bid or proposal process, nor do they require additional 
approval by the Board of Commissioners.  The dollar value of an open-market purchase 
determines the procedures that apply: 


  Purchases up to $5,000: Authority is delegated to departments to make 
purchases up to this amount, if they so choose.  For a purchase above $500.00 
the originating department must obtain a minimum of 3 documented verbal 
quotes or 3 written quotes, unless the purchase is made from an existing county 
or state contract.  The originating department must send the quotes along with 
their invoice or other payment request to the Finance Department, where it will 
be made part of the payment file.







            Page 3 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


The Purchasing Department will conduct an audit of purchases on an annual 
basis, for the purpose of ascertaining adherence to the policy of obtaining 3 
quotes for each purchase.  In the event that a department is found to not be in 
compliance, remedies will apply, including revocation of the department’s 
delegated purchasing authority. 


For any transaction in which a contract or other legal agreement is involved, the 
originating department must obtain immigration affidavits (E-Verify and SAVE 
programs) as required by Georgia statute.  The originating department will 
forward the contract and the affidavits to the Purchasing Department.  The 
Purchasing Department will file the immigration affidavits for reporting and audit 
purposes, and will forward the contract for authorized signature. 


  P-Cards: Authorized employees may make purchases up to the amount 
established by Policy & Procedure 210.01, titled “P-CARD Program.”  Employees 
must follow procedures set forth in that Section. 


  Store Accounts: The Purchasing Department may open store accounts on behalf 
of a department, with prior approval of the County Administrator.  Store accounts 
may be authorized with departmental spending limits equal to the non-
emergency limit for P-Card purchases. 


Purchases over $5,000 must go through the Purchasing Department.  The procedures 
that apply are dependent on the total value of the purchase: 


   $5,000.01 - $50,000.00: Purchases within this range require a minimum of three 
documented verbal quotes, or three written quotes, unless made from an existing 
county or state contract. 


  $50,000.01 - $200,000.00: These purchases require a minimum of three written 
quotes, unless made from an existing county or state contract. 


Employees may not artificially subdivide a purchase to avoid any of the above 
requirements or limits. 


B.  Competitive Sealed Bids / Proposals 


Invitations for sealed bids and requests for proposals are used when the purchase is for 
$20,000 or more.  They require formal advertising in the county newspaper, public 
openings, and the Board of Commissioners makes the award based on information 
submitted by the requesting department and the Purchasing Department.  Depending on 
the nature of the purchase, bonds may also be required. 


The above policies are facilitated by using bidders list applications.  A bidders list 
application contains 5 digit commodity codes that a company or individual can choose 
from.  Each commodity code has a brief description, and when commodity codes are 
chosen by a company or individual that fills out the bidders list application, those 
commodity codes are entered into the computer by Purchasing Department staff using a 
separate vendor number for each company or individual.  From this collection of 
information, a bidders list can be obtained for any commodity (goods or services) that 







            Page 4 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


companies have indicated to the Purchasing Department that they sell by having filled 
out a bidders’ list application. 


The bidders’ list application can be downloaded from the Fayette County website, or it 
may be obtained in the Purchasing Department at the front county in Suite 101. 


Road Construction: The county will use the invitation to bid (ITB) or request for 
proposals (RFP) process for any road construction contract of $20,000 or more, as 
required by Georgia Code, Chapter 32-4.  For this purpose, the term “contract” is defined 
in OCGA 32-4-60 to include construction, reconstruction or maintenance of a public 
road.


Public Works Construction Projects: The county will issue an ITB for any public works 
construction project costing $100,000 or more, as required by Georgia Code, Chapter 
36-91.


Fuel: Due to the unique nature of the fuel distribution industry, fuel purchases will not 
follow the sealed bid process, unless and until such time as the county may choose to 
seek a contract for fuel delivery.  The Director of Purchasing may approve fuel 
purchases up to $75,000.  Any fuel purchase above that amount, and up to $200,000 
may be approved by the County Administrator.  Any fuel purchase over $200,000 must 
be approved by the Board of Commissioners. 


Other Procurement: For other procurements, the Purchasing Department will issue an 
ITB or RFP when the total price is expected to be over $200,000.  In such cases, the 
originating department will initiate the procurement process: 


1. For an ITB, the originating department will develop product or service 
specifications. 


2. For an RFP, the originating department will provide the following information, 
which will become part of the RFP: 


a. Objective 
b. Introduction 
c. Statement of Need 
d. Scope of Work 
e. Proposal Response Requirements 
f. Evaluation Plan 
g. Pricing Structure 


3. The originating department will provide other information, such as 
quantity needed or estimated usage, suggested vendors (if any), or other 
essential or helpful information. 


The Purchasing Department will prepare the terms and conditions, cover letter, 
immigration affidavits, and other documentation that completes the ITB or RFP. 


Once the ITB or RFP package is completed, the Purchasing Department will notify 
vendors, using any of a variety of available methods, as appropriate.  This may include, 
but is not limited to, the following: 







            Page 5 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


  Bidders list: The Purchasing Department will maintain a bidders list of vendor 
names and addresses from which bids, proposals or quotations can be solicited. 


  State bidders list: The Purchasing Department will use the state’s Georgia 
Procurement Registry for solicitations, as deemed necessary or advantageous, 
to acquire enough bids to assure adequate price competition. 


  Other communications: The Purchasing Department will use other means 
available to (1) assure that interested vendors have an opportunity to compete, 
and (2) to generate adequate price competition among vendors.  This may 
include, but not be limited to, Internet, public access cable television, and printed 
media notifications. 


Public Bid / Proposal Openings:  The Purchasing Department shall open bids and 
proposals in public view, at the established time and place, with at least one witness.  
For bids, the opening employee will disclose each vendor and the price(s) bid.  For 
proposals, the opening employee will disclose only each vendor. 


Bid opened in error: If a county employee inadvertently opens a bid or proposal in error 
before the established bid opening date and time, upon discovering the error the 
employee shall reseal the bid, and write on it “Opened in Error.”  The employee shall ask 
another employee to witness the re-sealing.  One employee shall note the time and date 
on the envelope, and both employees shall sign it.  This action will allow the bid or 
proposal to maintain its status as a sealed bid. 


Mistakes in bids: When a mistake is discovered in a bid, the bidder may be allowed an 
opportunity to correct or withdraw the bid in some circumstances.  This must be done in 
a manner that does not confer upon the bidder an unfair advantage, and in a way that 
will not prejudice the interests of the public: 


  A bidder may modify or withdraw a bid at any time before the bid opening.  An 
authorized representative of the bidder must request the modification or 
withdrawal of the bid in writing. 


  If a mistake is discovered after the bid opening but before award, the Director of 
Purchasing may allow the bidder to withdraw the bid.   The Director may waive a 
mistake, or permit the bidder to correct it, if the mistake is minor and the true 
intent of the bid is obvious from the bid document itself. 


  After award of a contract, relief for a mistake that is discovered must be 
considered in light of the circumstances.  There may be extenuating 
considerations, such as an error so substantial that refusal to grant relief would 
be unconscionable.  In less severe cases, the winning bidder may be held to the 
bid, at the discretion of the county. 


After a bid or proposal opening, the originating department will conduct an evaluation.  
This may be done by an individual or an evaluation committee, depending on 
considerations such as the size and complexity of the bid or proposal. 


After evaluation is complete, the originating department will provide written 
recommendations to the Director of Purchasing.  For bids, the originating department 







            Page 6 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


must include justification or explanations when recommending other than the lowest bid.  
For proposals, the originating department must provide the evaluation criteria, 
evaluations, and scores to the Purchasing Department. 


Although bids or proposals are required only for procurements over $200,000 sometimes 
a recommended price may be lower than anticipated.  In addition, it may be in the best 
interest of the county to issue invitations to bid or requests for proposals for certain 
procurements under $200,000 such as those of a highly technical nature.  For 
recommendations up to $50,000 authority is given to the Director of Purchasing to 
approve the department’s recommendations.  For recommendations over $50,000 and 
up to $200,000 the Director of Purchasing will present the recommendations to the 
County Administrator for final decision. 


After reviewing a recommendation over $200,000 the Director of Purchasing will notify 
the originating department.  The originating department will complete a Board agenda 
request and forward it for inclusion on the agenda.  The Purchasing Department will 
provide backup data concerning the bid or proposal process. 


C.  Sole Source Procurement 


The term “sole source” refers to the source, not the product or service.  This can, but 
does not necessarily, refer to the fact that literally only one vendor provides the product 
or service.   Circumstances may define a sole source situation, such as a need for 
immediate delivery or repairs at a particular location, when there is only one vendor that 
can accommodate.  The decision to sole-source a procurement may be based on a lack 
of competition, proprietary technology, copyright, or a supplier’s unique capability.  
Sometimes procurement can be sole source in the short term, but not in the long term. 


In the event of a need for sole source procurement, the originating department must 
explain in writing to the Director of Purchasing the situation and the need for a sole 
source purchase or contract. This requirement will apply to all sole source procurements, 
whether carried out through the Purchasing Department of by the originating 
department.


D.  Proprietary Procurement


A proprietary product or service is one that some person or company has exclusive right 
to manufacture and/or sell.  It may be protected by a patent, copyright, trademark or 
other exclusive right.  This is different from a sole source situation, in that there may be 
competing vendors with comparable goods or services. 


In the event of a need for a proprietary procurement, the originating department must 
explain in writing to the Director of Purchasing the situation and the need for a non-
competitive purchase or contract. 


E.  Professional Services 


At times, the county will need to enter into contracts for services that require special 
skills, that specify certain products or services, or present other circumstances in which 
bids or proposals might not produce the best outcomes.  In these instances when it is in 
the county’s best interest, a professional services contract may be negotiated, unless in 
conflict with existing laws, rules, or regulations. 


F.  Purchases from State Contracts 







            Page 7 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


Purchases may be made through State of Georgia purchasing contracts, inasmuch as 
they have previously gone through a sealed bid process at the state level.  Prior 
approval from the Board of Commissioners will not be needed, except for purchases 
over $200,000 or purchases to be made from funds that were not previously budgeted. 


G.  Internet Purchases 


Various forms of on-line procurement are available, and others may be anticipated in the 
future.  Purchasing and other departments may consider and use these procurement 
methods as appropriate, if they do not conflict with state law, county ordinance, or 
provisions of the Policy and Procedures Manual. 


H.  Contracts


The Purchasing Department will obtain approval of the Board of Commissioners prior to 
executing contracts in the following situations: 


  If the total price of the contract is over $200,000 or; 
  If funds to pay the contractor are not budgeted 


The Chairman or County Administrator is authorized to sign properly procured contracts 
that are less than $200,000 and budgeted. 


The Purchasing Department will assure that all contracts comply with state immigration 
laws at Georgia Code Title 13 (E-Verify) and Title 50 (Systematic Alien Verification for 
Eligibility or SAVE), prior to execution. 


Contracts must comply with Georgia law for public works bidding and contracting as 
provided in Georgia Code Chapter 36-91, and for road bidding and contracts as provided 
in Georgia Code Chapter 32-4. 


I.  Emergency Procurement 


In times of emergency, the need for expediency outweighs the desire for price 
competition.  These procedures address two levels of emergency, as described below: 


1. A state of emergency may be declared by the Governor, or determined to exist 
by the county governing authority.  During times of declared emergency, 
procedures for emergency procurement will be in effect, as authorized in the 
Policy and Procedures Manual or other official documents. 


2. An emergency may be caused by an unexpected and urgent situation, but which 
does not rise to the level of the above-described declared state of emergency.  
For procurement purposes, this level of emergency is described as an 
unexpected situation which requires rapid response outside of established 
purchasing procedures.  It may involve danger to health, life or property.  It may 
involve an unexpected delay in delivery, depleted inventory, or an unusually high 
volume of work, depending on the situation {however, care must be taken that 
adequate planning is done so that these situations do not occur when avoidable}.
In event of such a situation, the Director of Purchasing shall have the authority to 
make necessary purchases, while adhering to established policies and 
procedures as closely as circumstances allow.  If the emergency occurs outside 
of normal business hours, on weekends, or on holidays, and the Director of 
Purchasing is unavailable, the Director of the department in question shall have 
the same authority as the Director of Purchasing.  Documentation is to be 







            Page 8 C:\Fayette County\County Manager\Retreat\Fin 250.01 Purchasing Policy 


Update.docx 


submitted to the Purchasing Department as soon as possible following the 
emergency. 


This exception does not apply to a condition in which an emergency situation 
might potentially occur in the future.  It applies to situations in which there is an 
imminent need such that it is important to disregard normal procedures.  


J.  Maintenance and Support Agreements


It is important that departments give procurement of maintenance or support agreements 
the same considerations as other purchases.  While many agreements are proprietary, 
they may not necessarily be sole source services, or the most competitively priced. 


Maintenance or support agreements constitute legally binding contracts which require 
the signature of the Board Chairman or another legally empowered official.  They may 
require one or more immigration affidavits, in compliance with Georgia Code. 


Departments must process maintenance or support agreements using the same 
thresholds as outlined in this policy. All contracts or agreements should be sent to the 
Purchasing Department for obtaining authorized signatures, along with immigration 
affidavits and legally authorized identification documents.  Contracts or agreements in 
excess of the formal procurement threshold of $200,000 must be placed on the Board 
agenda for consideration. 


K.  Purchases Using Federal Funds 


For procurements using federal funds, the county must follow federal rules, including the 
Federal Common Rule.  The county must also follow any additional rules or conditions 
imposed by a pass-through or administering organization, such as a state agency.  
Instructions for these circumstances are provided elsewhere in the Policies and 
Procedures Manual. 


L. Budget Availability 


The originating department is responsible for assuring that funds are budgeted before 
initiating any procurement. 


M.  Unauthorized Purchases 


No purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, or services shall be made in the name of 
the county, or through its purchasing department, except such as are required for official 
use by the county or one of its departments.  Purchases in the name of the county or a 
department for personal use by an individual or for other than official use are prohibited, 
and not county funds will be expended or advanced for such purpose. 







1


Floyd Jones


From: Steve Brown <stevebrownptc@outlook.com>


Sent: Tuesday, March 17, 2015 6:22 PM


To: Floyd Jones


Subject: Aaron Schock resigns after new questions about mileage expenses


http://www.politico.com/story/2015/03/aaron-schock-resigns-116153.html 


 


Floyd, 


 


Please print the attachment and include it in the March 26 agenda item on the $200,000 spending threshold. 


 


Thanks. 


 


Steve Brown 










Getty


Aaron Schock resigns after new questions about mileage expenses
By JAKE SHERMAN, ANNA PALMER and JOHN BRESNAHAN | 3/17/15 2:08 PM EDT | Updated 3/17/15 


4:28 PM EDT


Illinois Rep. Aaron Schock resigned Tuesday, less than 12 hours after POLITICO raised 


questions about tens of thousands of dollars in mileage reimbursements he received for his 


personal vehicle.


Schock billed the federal government and his campaign for logging roughly 170,000 miles 


on his personal car from January 2010 through July 2014. But when he sold that Chevrolet 


Tahoe in July 2014, it had roughly 80,000 miles on the odometer, according to public 


records obtained by POLITICO under Illinois open records laws. The documents, in other 


words, indicate he was reimbursed for 90,000 miles more than his car was driven.


The discrepancy added to a growing wave of ethical and legal problems for the 33-year-old 


politician.


Page 1 of 4Aaron Schock resigns after new questions about mileage expenses - POLITICO


3/17/2015http://www.politico.com/story/2015/03/aaron-schock-resigns-116153.html







ALSO ON POLITICO


Investigators contact Schock associates
JAKE SHERMAN, ANNA PALMER and JOHN BRESNAHAN


“[T]he constant questions over the last six weeks have proven a great distraction that has 


made it too difficult for me to serve the people of the 18th District with the high standards 


that they deserve and which I have set for myself,” Schock said in a surprise statement on 


Tuesday. “I have always sought to do what’s best for my constituents, and I thank them for 


the opportunity to serve.”


Later Tuesday, a spokesman for Schock added, “In an effort to remove any questions and out 


of an abundance of caution, Congressman Schock has reimbursed all monies received for 


official mileage since his election to Congress.”


Schock’s resignation marks a swift downfall of one of the GOP’s most promising young stars 


and prolific fundraisers. The former state legislator was elected to Congress in 2008 and 


shot through the ranks of the House GOP. At one point gracing the cover of Men’s Health 


magazine, he was a fresh face in a party eager to modernize its image.


But as his prominence grew Schock adopted an expensive lifestyle — stays in luxury hotels, 


dining at pricey restaurants, flights on private jets. Mounting questions about how he paid 


for it eventually caught up with him.


The congressman’s vehicle history was pieced together from dozens of pages of Illinois 


vehicle records.


When Schock transferred the SUV to an Illinois dealership in 2014, it had 81,860 miles on 


the odometer, the documents show. However, from January 2010 to the end of July 2014, he 


billed the federal government for 123,131 miles on his personal vehicle. During the same 


period, the Republican billed his “Schock for Congress” campaign account and GOP 


Generation Y Fund, his leadership political action committee, for an additional 49,388 miles.


Altogether, Schock sought reimbursement for 172,520 miles on his car, despite the fact that 


he signed documents that certified the vehicle traveled less than half that distance.


Schock had no other vehicles registered in his name at the time, according to state public 


records. Multiple sources familiar with his office operations say he only drove the Tahoe 


during this period.


Page 2 of 4Aaron Schock resigns after new questions about mileage expenses - POLITICO


3/17/2015http://www.politico.com/story/2015/03/aaron-schock-resigns-116153.html







In November 2009, less than a year after Schock took his seat in Congress, the lawmaker 


bought the 2010 Tahoe from Green Chevrolet in Peoria. The dealership is owned by Jeff 


Green, a contributor to Schock who has flown the congressman around his district in his 


airplane and helicopter.


When Schock purchased the new car, it had four miles on it, according to publicly available 


automobile transaction documents.


On July 19, 2014, Schock transferred the car back to Green Chevrolet with 81,860 miles on it, 


according to a transfer document that Schock signed.


On that same day in 2014, Schock bought a black 2015 Chevrolet Tahoe with 10 miles on it. 


Schock’s campaign spent nearly $75,000 on the car, according to campaign filings, but the 


congressman registered the car in his own name. The SUV sports congressional license 


plates with the number “18” — the number of Schock’s congressional district.


Between 2010 and 2014, the government mileage reimbursements requests were filed by 


Schock on a near-monthly basis. Members of Congress and staffers are permitted to bill the 


government and campaign for use of a personal vehicle, and, generally speaking, do not 


have to keep logs to record the miles they drive.


When asked about the mileage several weeks ago, Schock’s office said the congressman 


spends a lot of time in automobiles and chartering private jets between events in his central 


Illinois district. His office also raised the possibility that staffers were driving his vehicle and 


weren’t sure if it was permissible under the rules.


During the past month, Schock repaid the government $40,000 after spending money from 


his official office budget to redecorate his office to resemble the set of PBS’s “Downton 


Abbey,” an English historical drama. He also reimbursed taxpayers more than $1,200 after 


using his office account to pay to fly on a private plane to a Chicago Bears football game.


Separately, on a campaign-finance document, Schock labeled the cost of a November flight 


on a private plane as a software purchase. He has failed to report trips abroad, as required. 


And he held a fundraiser at a golf course without reporting paying for its use.


In an interview with POLITICO last week in Peoria, Schock could not say with certainty that 


he had not broken the law.


“I certainly hope not,” Schock said. The Illinois Republican added that he was not an 


attorney, and therefore could not know whether he broke the law or ethics rules. Schock 


Page 3 of 4Aaron Schock resigns after new questions about mileage expenses - POLITICO


3/17/2015http://www.politico.com/story/2015/03/aaron-schock-resigns-116153.html







also declined to directly answer whether he had accepted improper gifts as a member of 


Congress.


News reports by POLITICO and the Chicago Sun-Times raised a series of questions about 


Schock’s spending and record-keeping. The Office of Congressional Ethics opened an 


investigation of the lawmaker on Feb. 28 and has begun contacting his associates about 


appearing before the independent panel behind closed doors. The OCE probe —and any 


potential Ethics Committee investigation —will disappear with Schock’s resignation. 


However, federal law enforcement could still look into Schock’s actions. Schock has two 


attorneys, former Federal Election Commission commissioner Don McGahn and criminal 


defense attorney William McGinley, both of Jones Day. Ron Bonjean and Brian Walsh, two 


longtime GOP communications aides, are handling his press strategy.


Schock will remain in Congress until March 31.


Page 4 of 4Aaron Schock resigns after new questions about mileage expenses - POLITICO


3/17/2015http://www.politico.com/story/2015/03/aaron-schock-resigns-116153.html







http://www.11alive.com/story/news/local/decatur/2014/08/25/elaine-boyer-dekalb-commissioner-


resigns/14588079/ 


Ex-DeKalb Commissioner pleads guilty 
to criminal charges 
 
11Alive Staff, WXIA6:40 p.m. EDT September 3, 2014 


DEKALB COUNTY, Ga. -- A former DeKalb County Commissioner pleaded guilty to federal 


criminal charges of mail fraud conspiracy and wire fraud on Wednesday. 


Elaine Boyer, who had to pay the county back for thousands of dollars in unauthorized 


charges on her county-issued credit card, resigned in August. 


As 11Alive reported in March, a review of Elaine Boyer's spending found charges for 


airline tickets, car rentals and other items unrelated to any official county business. 


In newly-released court documents, prosecutors allege that Boyer took part in a scheme to 


defraud DeKalb County and obtain money under false pretenses.(READ THE 


DOCUMENTS HERE) 


Federal prosecutors said the case against Boyer is part of a larger investigation into 


corruption in DeKalb County government. 


Prosecutors say Boyer stole more than $90,000 from the county treasury. They say she 


set up a kickback scheme with a bogus contractor, paying him $78,000 in county funds, 


then getting $58,000 of it kicked back to her personal bank account. 


Boyer is also accused of using her county credit card for some $15,000 worth of personal 


purchases. 


"She accepts full responsibility for the decisions that she's made and she has 


acknowledged that she has abused the trust of the folks of DeKalb County," said Jeff 


Brickman, Boyer's attorney. 


Boyer will be sentenced on December 3. She faces the possibility of up to 20 years in 


prison for each of the the two counts. 


Prosecutors say Boyer is cooperating in her case and recommend a sentence at the 


bottom of the guideline. However, U.S. Attorney Sally Yates also said last week she wants 


to see Boyer get jail time. 


Boyer sent her letter of resignation to Gov, Nathan Deal on August 25. 







In it she said "I want to express my heartfelt gratitude for the opportunity to have served in 


this capacity for the last twenty-two years and want to thank my constituents for their years 


of support. I wish the citizens of this county and my colleagues all the best." 


She gave no specifics of why she stepped down in the letter. 


Interim DeKalb County CEO Lee May issued a statement about the case: 


"Recent news stories notwithstanding, Elaine Boyer has faithfully served the constituents of District 1 


and DeKalb County for over 20 years. It is my sincere hope that her resignation will allow the healing 


process to begin and open the door for a new voice on the Board of Commissioners. I wish her the 


best." 


 


Former Gwinnett County commissioner sentenced on 
bribery charges 
 
Read more: http://www.cbs46.com/story/19459142/former-gwinnett-county-commisioner-to-be-sentenced-on-bribery-
charges#ixzz3UgYwf8V6 
 
Posted: Sep 05, 2012 7:48 AM EDTUpdated: Oct 03, 2012 4:53 PM EDT 


GWINNETT COUNTY, GA (CBS46) - 


A federal judge sentenced Gwinnett County Commissioner Shirley Lasseter to 33 
months in prison on Wednesday. 


"Almost from the moment she took office as a Gwinnett County Commissioner, 
she began betraying the trust of the citizens of Gwinnett County," said U.S. 
Attorney Sally Yates. 


Lasseter pleaded guilty in May to a federal bribery charge. She admitted that she 
agreed to sell her vote on a real estate deal to an undercover FBI agent who 
posed as a businessman. 


Lasseter received a lesser sentence because she helped prosecutors bring 
bribery charges against Gwinnett County businessman Mark Gary. 


"Mark Gary can't say anything today. We expect that Mark will be in court in the 
next day or two, or perhaps next week to enter a plea of guilty," said Gary's 
attorney Paul Kish. 


Gary also appeared before a federal judge Wednesday. He waived his rights to 
an indictment and told the judge he plans to plead guilty to bribery. 


According to court documents, Gary paid Lasseter, 64, and her son, John 
Fanning, $30,000 in exchange for Lasseter's Commission vote to approve an 







application Gary submitted to the county to develop a $4 million solid waste 
transfer station. 


In April 2009, Lasseter voted to approve Gary's pending application. In June 
2009, Gary paid Fanning $30,000 worth of gambling chips at an out-of-state 
casino. 


"There's corruption in Gwinnett County. Mark Gary is not the problem. An honest 
developer can't do business in Gwinnett County," Kish said. 


Federal prosecutors said Fanning gave some of the money to Lasseter and used 
the remainder for his and Lasseter's personal benefit, which included buying a 
vehicle. 


Lasseter's son, Fanning, and Hall County businessman Carl 'Skip' Cain pleaded 
guilty to the bribery scheme and also to drug charges. 


Fanning and Cain acted as couriers delivering what they believed to be cocaine 
and what they believed to be drug money. 


They will be sentenced on Sept. 18. 


"I hope it sends the message that if you are a corrupt public officials. If you take 
payoffs and betray the public trust, you will be held accountable," Yates said. 


Lasseter was Duluth's mayor for 14 years. She was elected to the county 
commission in 2009 and took her seat in 2010. 


She is expected to be in the federal prison system within six weeks. 


Copyright 2012 WGCL-TV (Meredith Corporation).  All rights reserved.  





		Commissioners- Spending Limits Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Spending Limits Backup

		Commissioners- Spending Limits Backup

		Brown- Spending Limits Backup-1

		Brown-1

		Brown-2



		Brown- Spending Limits Backup-2

		Brown-1

		Brown-2














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 467 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single 


Family Residential) to R-70 (Single Family Residential.)


The City of Fayetteville has notified Fayette County of an application to annex 467 Veterans Parkway which consists of .947 acres.  The 


city also notified the County of it intention to zone the property to R-70.  The current county zoning for the property is already R-70.  The 


County's governing authority may either "object" to the annexation, by majority vote, or choose not to object to the annexation request. 


 


An objection is valid if the proposed change in zoning or land use plan  


 


1. Results in: (a)  a substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property or a change to a significantly different 


allowable use; or (b)  a use which significantly diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project which is furnished by the 


County to the area to be annexed; and  


 


2.  Differs substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the County's comprehensive land use plan or permitted for 


the property pursuant to the County's zoning ordinance or land use ordinances. 


 


This proposed zoning or land use is substantially the same.  No basis for an objection exists.


Approval of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of 467 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single Family 


Residential) to R-70 (Single Family Residential.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #14







1 


 


To: Board of Commissioners 


 


From: Pete Frisina 


 


Date: March 16, 2015 


 


Re: Fayetteville Annexation Request for 467 Veterans Parkway, Fayetteville, GA 


30214 Property Tax ID#: 05-35-009 


  
 


Fayetteville has received a request for annexation for the above-referenced property located at 


467 Veterans Parkway, Fayetteville, GA 30214.  The annexation notice from Fayetteville 


indicates the intent to annex and rezone approximately .947 acres to R-70 (Single-Family 


Residential).  The subject property is currently zoned R-70 (Single-Family Residential) in 


Fayette County and contains a single-family residence and several accessory structures. The 


annexation application indicates there are currently no development plans for the property and it 


will be designated as Neighborhood Mixed Use on the Fayetteville Future Land Use Map.  This 


property is included in DRI (Development of Regional Impact) #2480 (see attached map). 


 


General Description   
 


The subject property is located at 467 Veterans Parkway.  The proposed annexation would not 


create an island.  The subject property abuts the following: 


 


Direction Acreage Zoning  Use Comprehensive Plan 


North, East 


and South 


(This property 


is also being 


considered for 


annexation.) 


97.87 R-70 Undeveloped Rural Residential (1 Unit/2 to 3 


Acres) 


West 


(across 


Veterans 


Pkwy) 


288.50 PUD (City of 


Fayetteville) 


Pinewood Studio City of Fayetteville  


 


Current County Land Use  


 


The subject property is designated as Rural Residential (1 Unit/2 to 3 Acres) on the Fayette 


County Future Land Use Plan map.      


 


DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  


 


Planning and Zoning:  As the subject property is currently zoned R-70 (Single-Family 


Residential) and will be zoned R-70 (Single-Family Residential) in Fayetteville there is no 


change in zoning or land use that will result in a substantial change in the intensity of the 







2 


 


allowable use of the property or a change to a significantly different allowable use (see State 


Law below).   


 


Fire/EMS: Fire and Emergency services opposes the annexation due to the loss of fire revenue. 


 


Water System: Water is available in the area.  An extension would be required to service these 


parcels. 


 


Public Works/Engineering:   


 


 


Environmental Health:  Our department has no objection to either of these proposed 


annexation requests.   


  


Should any existing structures on either of these properties be demolished during the 


development of the sites, then any existing septic tank systems must be properly abandoned and 


verified by this department as part of the demolition process prior to any redevelopment on the 


sites.  
 


Environmental Management:   


 


Floodplain The property does NOT contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM panel 


13113C0082E.  


  


Wetlands The property does NOT contain any wetlands per the U.S. Department of 


the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory 


Map.   


 


Watershed There are NO water bodies subject to the County watershed protection 


buffers and setbacks.   


 


Groundwater The property IS NOT within the groundwater recharge area, as delineated 


on the Georgia Department of Natural Resources’ 1992 Ground-Water 


Pollution Susceptibility Map of Georgia (Hydrologic Atlas 20).   


 


Stormwater The development of this property should meet all current stormwater 


management practices for development. Analysis of the impacts to 


downstream properties is suggested.  


 


Stormwater Utility The County will lose stormwater revenue if this parcel is to be annexed.  


  







3 


 


 


Sheriff=s Office:   


 


STATE LAW 


 


TITLE 36.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT   


PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS ONLY   


CHAPTER 36.  ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY   


ARTICLE 7.  PROCEDURE FOR RESOLVING ANNEXATION DISPUTES  


 


36-36-113. Objection to annexation; grounds and procedures 


 


 (a) The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation because 


of a material increase in burden upon the county directly related to any one or more of the 


following: 


 


(1) The proposed change in zoning or land use; 


 


(2) Proposed increase in density; and 


 


(3) Infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use. 


 


(b) Delivery of services may not be a basis for a valid objection but may be used in support 


of a valid objection if directly related to one or more of the subjects enumerated in 


paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of subsection (a) of this Code section. 


 


(c)  The objection provided for in subsection (a) of this Code section shall document the 


nature of the objection specifically providing evidence of any financial impact forming 


the basis of the objection and shall be delivered to the municipal governing authority by 


certified mail or statutory overnight delivery to be received not later than the end of the 


thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice provided for in Code Section 36-36-


111. 


 


(d) In order for an objection pursuant to this Code section to be valid, the proposed change in 


zoning or land use must: 


 


(1) Result in: 


 


(A) A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property 


or a change to a significantly different allowable use; or 


    


    (B) A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or 


significantly diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project, 


as such term is defined in Code Section 48-8-110, which is furnished by 


the county to the area to be annexed; and 


 







4 


 


(2) Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the 


county’s comprehensive land use or permitted for the property pursuant to the 


county's zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 


 


36-36-114.  Arbitration panel; composition and membership  


 


   (a)  Not later than the fifteenth calendar day following the date the municipal corporation 


received the first objection provided for in Code Section 36-36-113, an arbitration panel 


shall be appointed as provided in this Code section. 


 


(b)  The arbitration panel shall be composed of five members to be selected as provided in 


this subsection. The Department of Community Affairs shall develop three pools of 


arbitrators, one pool which consists of persons who are currently or within the previous 


six years have been municipal elected officials, one pool which consists of persons who 


are currently or within the previous six years have been county elected officials, and one 


pool which consists of persons with a master's degree or higher in public administration 


or planning and who are currently employed by an institution of higher learning in this 


state, other than the Carl Vinson Institute of Government. The pool shall be sufficiently 


large to ensure as nearly as practicable that no person shall be required to serve on more 


than two panels in any one calendar year and serve on no more than one panel in any 


given county in any one calendar year. The department is authorized to coordinate with 


the Georgia Municipal Association, the Association County Commissioners of Georgia, 


the Council of Local Governments, and similar organizations in developing and 


maintaining such pools. 


 


(c)  Upon receiving notice of a disputed annexation, the department shall choose at random 


four names from the pool of municipal officials, four names from the pool of county 


officials, and three names from the pool of academics; provided, however, that none of 


such selections shall include a person who is a resident of the county which has 


interposed the objection or any municipal corporation located wholly or partially in such 


county. The municipal corporation shall be permitted to strike or excuse two of the names 


chosen from the county officials pool; the county shall be permitted to strike or excuse 


two of the names chosen from the municipal officials pool; and the county and municipal 


corporation shall each be permitted to strike or excuse one of the names chosen from the 


academic pool. 


 


(d)  Prior to being eligible to serve on any of the three pools, persons interested in serving on 


such panels shall receive joint training in alternative dispute resolution together with 


zoning and land use training, which may be designed and overseen by the Carl Vinson 


Institute of Government in conjunction with the Association County Commissioners of 


Georgia and the Georgia Municipal Association, provided such training is available. 


 


(e)  At the time any person is selected to serve on a panel for any particular annexation 


dispute, he or she shall sign the following oath: "I do solemnly swear or affirm that I will 


faithfully perform my duties as an arbitrator in a fair and impartial manner without favor 


or affection to any party, and that I have not and will not have any ex parte 







5 


 


communication regarding the facts and circumstances of the matters to be determined, 


other than communications with my fellow arbitrators, and will only consider, in making 


my determination, those matters which may lawfully come before me." 


 


36-36-115. Meetings of arbitration panel; duties; findings and recommendations; 


compensation  


 


(a)  (1) The arbitration panel appointed pursuant to Code Section 36-36-114 shall meet as 


soon after appointment as practicable and shall receive evidence and argument from the 


municipal corporation, the county, and the applicant or property owner and shall by 


majority vote render a decision which shall be binding on all parties to the dispute as 


provided for in this article not later than the sixtieth day following such appointment. The 


meetings of the panel in which evidence is submitted or arguments of the parties are 


made shall be open to the public pursuant to Chapter 14 of Title 50. The panel shall first 


determine the validity of the grounds for objection as specified in the objection. If an 


objection involves the financial impact on the county as a result of a change in zoning or 


land use or the provision of maintenance of infrastructure, the panel shall quantify such 


impact in terms of cost. As to any objection which the panel has determined to be valid, 


the panel, in its findings, may establish reasonable zoning, land use, or density conditions 


applicable to the annexation and propose any reasonable mitigating measures as to an 


objection pertaining to infrastructure demands. 


 


(2) In arriving at its determination, the panel shall consider: 


 


      (A) The existing comprehensive land use plans of both the county and city; 


 


      (B) The existing land use patterns in the area of the subject property; 


 


      (C) The existing zoning patterns in the area of the subject property; 


 


      (D) Each jurisdiction's provision of infrastructure to the area of the subject property; 


 


      (E) Whether the county has approved similar changes in intensity or allowable uses 


on similar developments in other unincorporated areas of the county; 


 


      (F) Whether the county has approved similar developments in other unincorporated 


areas of the county which have a similar impact on infrastructure as complained 


of by the county in its objection; and 


 


      (G) Whether the infrastructure or capital outlay project which is claimed adversely 


impacted by the county in its objection was funded by a county-wide tax. 


 


(3) The county shall provide supporting evidence that its objection is consistent with its 


land use plan and the pattern of existing land uses and zonings in the area of the 


subject property. 


 







6 


 


(4) The county shall bear at least 75 percent of the cost of the arbitration. The panel shall 


apportion the remaining 25 percent of the cost of the arbitration equitably between the 


city and the county as the facts of the appeal warrant; provided, however, that if the 


panel determines that any party has advanced a position that is substantially frivolous, 


the costs shall be borne by the party that has advanced such position. 


 


(5) The reasonable costs of participation in the arbitration process of the property owner 


or owners whose property is at issue shall be borne by the county and the city in the 


same proportion as costs are apportioned under paragraph (4) of this subsection. 


 


(6) The panel shall deliver its findings and recommendations to the parties by certified 


mail or statutory overnight delivery. 


 


(b)  If the decision of the panel contains zoning, land use, or density conditions, the findings 


and recommendations of the panel shall be recorded in the deed records of the county 


with a caption describing the name of the current owner of the property, recording 


reference of the current owner's acquisition deed and a general description of the 


property, and plainly showing the expiration date of any restrictions or conditions. 


 


(c)  The arbitration panel shall be dissolved on the tenth day after it renders its findings and 


recommendations but may be reconvened as provided in Code Section 36-36-116. 


 


(d)  The members of the arbitration panel shall receive the same per diem, expenses, and 


allowances for their service on the committee as is authorized by law for members of 


interim legislative study committees. 


 


(e)  If the panel so agrees, any one or more additional annexation disputes which may arise 


between the parties prior to the panel's initial meeting may be consolidated for the 


purpose of judicial economy if there are similar issues of location or similar objections 


raised to such other annexations or the property to be annexed in such other annexations 


is within 2,500 feet of the subject property. 


 


36-36-116. Appeal  


 


The municipal or county governing authority or an applicant for annexation may appeal 


the decision of the arbitration panel by filing an action in the superior court of the county 


within ten calendar days from receipt of the panel's findings and recommendations. The 


sole grounds for appeal shall be to correct errors of fact or of law, the bias or misconduct 


of an arbitrator, or the panel's abuse of discretion. The superior court shall schedule an 


expedited appeal and shall render a decision within 20 days from the date of filing. If the 


court finds that an error of fact or law has been made, that an arbitrator was biased or 


engaged in misconduct, or that the panel has abused its discretion, the court shall issue 


such orders governing the proposed annexation as the circumstances may require, 


including remand to the panel. Any unappealed order shall be binding upon the parties. 


The appeal shall be assigned to a judge who is not a judge in the circuit in which the 


county is located. 







7 


 


 


36-36-117. Annexation after conclusion of procedures; remedies for violations of 


conditions  


 


If the annexation is completed after final resolution of any objection, whether by 


agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or court order as a result of an appeal, the 


municipal corporation shall not change the zoning, land use, or density of the annexed 


property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service delivery 


agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and county and all 


required parties. Following the conclusion of the dispute resolution process outlined in 


this article, the municipal corporation and an applicant for annexation may either accept 


the recommendations of the arbitration panel and proceed with the remaining annexation 


process or abandon the annexation proceeding. A violation of the conditions set forth in 


this Code section may be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such conditions 


have expired as provided in this Code section. 


 


36-36-118. Abandonment of proposed annexation; remedies for violations of conditions  


 


If at any time during the proceedings the municipal corporation or applicant abandons the 


proposed annexation, the county shall not change the zoning, land use, or density 


affecting the property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service 


delivery agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and county 


and all required parties. A violation of the conditions set forth in this Code section may 


be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such period has expired. After final 


resolution of any objection, whether by agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or any 


appeal from the panel's decision, the terms of such decision shall remain valid for the 


one-year period and such annexation may proceed at any time during the one year 


without any further action or without any further right of objection by the county. 


 


Summary 


 


As the subject property is currently zoned R-70 (Single-Family Residential) and will be zoned R-


70 (Single-Family Residential) in Fayetteville there is no change in zoning or land use that will 


result in a substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property or a change to a 


significantly different allowable use.   Please note that Fire/EMS is opposed due to the loss of 


revenue. 


 







R-70 R-70R-70R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70
R-70R-70


R-70R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


A-R


R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70 R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70
R-70R-70


R-70R-70R-70 R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70 R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70R-70


R-70 R-70R-70
R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70 R-70


R-70R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70S-Z


R-70
R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70 R-70


R-70
R-70R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70 R-70R-70


R-70R-70
R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70


R-70


R-70R-70 R-70R-70
R-70R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70R-70 R-70R-70R-70


R-70


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


Lamb Prop.
Zoning Map


Ve
ter


an
s P


kw
y Fayetteville


Sandy Creek Road


Lamb Prop.
Zoning Map


Lamb Property


Fayetteville


Fayetteville







CONSERVATION
AREAS


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL


CONSERVATION
AREAS


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


Lamb Prop.
Land Use Plan Map


Ve
ter


an
s P


kw
y Fayetteville


Sandy Creek Road


Lamb Prop.
Land Use Plan Map


Lamb Property


Fayetteville


Fayetteville







Lamb Prop.
Aerials Map


Ve
ter


an
s P


kw
y Fayetteville


Sandy Creek Road


Lamb Prop.
Aerials Map


Lamb Property


Fayetteville


Fayetteville









		Planning and Zoning- 467 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Annexation 467 Veterans Parkway Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's annexation of two separate parcels located at and near 475 Veterans Parkway and the 


rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to PCD (Planned Community Development.)


The City of Fayetteville has notified Fayette County of an application to annex two parcels located at and near 475 Veterans Parkway 


which consists of an aggregate 98.594 acres.  The city also notified the County of it intention to rezone the property to PCD (Planned 


Community Development) from its current county R-70 zoning.  The County's governing authority may either "object" to the annexation, 


by majority vote, or choose not to object to the annexation request.  An objection is valid if the proposed change in zoning or land use 


plan: (1) Results in: (a)  a substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property or a change to a significantly different 


allowable use; or (b)  a use which significantly diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project which is furnished by the 


County to the area to be annexed; and  


 


(2) Differs substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the County's comprehensive land use plan or permitted for 


the property pursuant to the County's zoning ordinance or its land use ordinance. 


 


In this case, the proposed zoning or land use is substantially different, thereby providing the basis for an objection.  However, the 


proposed development for the subject properties is in keeping with the master plan for previously annexed adjacent property and concurs 


with the Board's previous action on annexations associated with Pinewood Studios.


Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners not object to the City of Fayetteville's annexation of two separate parcels located at 


and near 475 Veterans Parkway and the rezoning of said property from R-70 (Single Family Residential) to PCD (Planned Community 


Development.)


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #15







1 


 


To: Board of Commissioners 


 


From: Pete Frisina 


 


Date: March 16, 2015 


 


Re: Fayetteville Annexation Request for 475 Veterans Parkway, Fayetteville, GA 


30214 Property Tax ID#: 05-35-008 and James Pace, Jr. property (no address) 


Property Tax ID#: 05-35-001 


  
 


Fayetteville has received a request for annexation for the above-referenced properties located at 


475 Veterans Parkway, Fayetteville, GA 30214. and the James Pace, Jr. property (no address).  


The annexation notice from Fayetteville indicates the intent to annex and rezone approximately 


98.594 acres to PCD.  The subject properties are currently zoned R-70 (Single-Family 


Residential) in Fayette County and 475 Veterans Parkway contains a single-family residence 


while the James Price, Jr. property is vacant. The annexation application indicates these 


properties will be combined with properties to the south as part of a mixed use development 


project currently named Pinewood Forest (see attached) and they will be designated as 


Neighborhood Mixed Use on the Fayetteville Future Land Use Map.  This property is included in 


DRI (Development of Regional Impact) #2480 (see attached map). 


 


General Description   
 


The subject property is located at 467 Veterans Parkway.  The proposed annexation would not 


create an island.  The subject property abuts the following: 


 


Direction Acreage Zoning  Use Comprehensive Plan 


North  4.90 


 


24.47 


R-70 


 


R-70 


Single-Family Residence 


 


Single-Family Residence 


Rural Residential (1 Unit/2 to 3 


Acres) 


 


East 2.09 


 


4.06 


 


15.66 


 


28.61 


R-70 


 


R-70 


 


R-70 


 


R-70 


Single-Family Residence 


 


Single-Family Residence 


 


Single-Family Residence 


 


Single-Family Residence 


Rural Residential (1 Unit/2 to 3 


Acres) 


South 122.73 PCD (City of 


Fayetteville) 


 


Undeveloped Low Density Single-Family (City 


of Fayetteville) 


 


West 


(across 


288.50 PCD (City of 


Fayetteville) 


Pinewood Studio Business Park (City of 


Fayetteville) 







2 


 


Veterans 


Pkwy) 
 


25.85 


PCD (City of 


Fayetteville) 


Former Elementary 


School 


Business Park (City of 


Fayetteville)  


 


Current County Land Use  


 


The subject property is designated as Rural Residential (1 Unit/2 to 3 Acres) and Conservation 


Area on the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map.      


 


DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  


 


Planning and Zoning:  The annexation and rezoning of the subject properties as proposed will 


create a change in zoning and land use that will result in a substantial change in the intensity of 


the allowable use of the property and a change to a significantly different allowable use (see 


State Law below).   


 


Fire/EMS: Fire and Emergency services opposes the annexation due to the loss of fire revenue. 


 


Water System: Water is available in the area.  An extension would be required to service these 


parcels. 


 


Public Works/Engineering: Public Works has reviewed the annexation applications for the 


Pierport, Pace and Lamb properties on Veterans Parkway.  These properties are part of a larger 


Development of Regional Impact (DRI) that is currently under development.  The cumulative 


traffic impacts from the DRI, including these properties, is significant to Veterans Parkway, 


Sandy Creek, South Sandy Creek and SR 54.   


 


Via a previous agreement, the City of Fayetteville already owns and maintains Veterans 


Parkway, from SR 54 to Sandy Creek.  Improvements to this section of Veterans Parkway 


needed as a result of the annexation and DRI will be the responsibility of the City and the 


Developer.  The primary impact to Fayette County will be upgrades needed to Sandy Creek as a 


result of the DRI.  These needs have not yet been quantified.   


 


Access to Veterans Parkway should be controlled (i.e., limited) and it is Public Work’s 


understanding that the DRI is meeting that goal.    


 


Last, Public Works recommends that any development within the City on the annexed properties 


consider pedestrian movements and for the plans to support a comprehensive network of multi-


use paths to serve the area.    


 


Environmental Health:  Our department has no objection to either of these proposed 


annexation requests.   


  


Should any existing structures on either of these properties be demolished during the 


development of the sites, then any existing septic tank systems must be properly abandoned and 


verified by this department as part of the demolition process prior to any redevelopment on the 


sites.  







3 


 


 


Environmental Management:   


 


Floodplain The property does contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM panels 


13113C0082E and 13113C0101E .  


 Wetlands The property does contain any wetlands per the U.S. Department of the 


Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map.   


Watershed The Fayette County Watershed Protect regulations do not apply to the 


subject property as it has not been subdivided since the 1987 inception of 


the aforementioned ordinance.  However, due to the size of the 


development, the Environmental Management Department recommends as 


a condition of rezoning that the state minimum buffer of 50 feet and 


setback of 75 feet as measured from wrested vegetation be maintained on 


Whitewater Creek and any tributaries as required by the Georgia 


Environmental Planning Criteria.   


 


Groundwater The property IS NOT within the groundwater recharge area, as delineated 


on the Georgia Department of Natural Resources’ 1992 Ground-Water 


Pollution Susceptibility Map of Georgia (Hydrologic Atlas 20).   


Stormwater The development of this property should meet all current stormwater 


management practices for development. Analysis of the impacts to 


downstream properties is suggested.  


Stormwater Utility The County will lose stormwater revenue if this parcel is to be annexed.  


 


Sheriff=s Office:   


 


STATE LAW 


 


TITLE 36.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT   


PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS ONLY   


CHAPTER 36.  ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY   


ARTICLE 7.  PROCEDURE FOR RESOLVING ANNEXATION DISPUTES  


 


36-36-113. Objection to annexation; grounds and procedures 


 


 (a) The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation because 


of a material increase in burden upon the county directly related to any one or more of the 


following: 


 


(1) The proposed change in zoning or land use; 


 


(2) Proposed increase in density; and 







4 


 


 


(3) Infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use. 


 


(b) Delivery of services may not be a basis for a valid objection but may be used in support 


of a valid objection if directly related to one or more of the subjects enumerated in 


paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of subsection (a) of this Code section. 


 


(c)  The objection provided for in subsection (a) of this Code section shall document the 


nature of the objection specifically providing evidence of any financial impact forming 


the basis of the objection and shall be delivered to the municipal governing authority by 


certified mail or statutory overnight delivery to be received not later than the end of the 


thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice provided for in Code Section 36-36-


111. 


 


(d) In order for an objection pursuant to this Code section to be valid, the proposed change in 


zoning or land use must: 


 


(1) Result in: 


 


(A) A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property 


or a change to a significantly different allowable use; or 


    


    (B) A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or 


significantly diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project, 


as such term is defined in Code Section 48-8-110, which is furnished by 


the county to the area to be annexed; and 


 


(2) Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the 


county’s comprehensive land use or permitted for the property pursuant to the 


county's zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 


 


36-36-114.  Arbitration panel; composition and membership  


 


   (a)  Not later than the fifteenth calendar day following the date the municipal corporation 


received the first objection provided for in Code Section 36-36-113, an arbitration panel 


shall be appointed as provided in this Code section. 


 


(b)  The arbitration panel shall be composed of five members to be selected as provided in 


this subsection. The Department of Community Affairs shall develop three pools of 


arbitrators, one pool which consists of persons who are currently or within the previous 


six years have been municipal elected officials, one pool which consists of persons who 


are currently or within the previous six years have been county elected officials, and one 


pool which consists of persons with a master's degree or higher in public administration 


or planning and who are currently employed by an institution of higher learning in this 


state, other than the Carl Vinson Institute of Government. The pool shall be sufficiently 


large to ensure as nearly as practicable that no person shall be required to serve on more 







5 


 


than two panels in any one calendar year and serve on no more than one panel in any 


given county in any one calendar year. The department is authorized to coordinate with 


the Georgia Municipal Association, the Association County Commissioners of Georgia, 


the Council of Local Governments, and similar organizations in developing and 


maintaining such pools. 


 


(c)  Upon receiving notice of a disputed annexation, the department shall choose at random 


four names from the pool of municipal officials, four names from the pool of county 


officials, and three names from the pool of academics; provided, however, that none of 


such selections shall include a person who is a resident of the county which has 


interposed the objection or any municipal corporation located wholly or partially in such 


county. The municipal corporation shall be permitted to strike or excuse two of the names 


chosen from the county officials pool; the county shall be permitted to strike or excuse 


two of the names chosen from the municipal officials pool; and the county and municipal 


corporation shall each be permitted to strike or excuse one of the names chosen from the 


academic pool. 


 


(d)  Prior to being eligible to serve on any of the three pools, persons interested in serving on 


such panels shall receive joint training in alternative dispute resolution together with 


zoning and land use training, which may be designed and overseen by the Carl Vinson 


Institute of Government in conjunction with the Association County Commissioners of 


Georgia and the Georgia Municipal Association, provided such training is available. 


 


(e)  At the time any person is selected to serve on a panel for any particular annexation 


dispute, he or she shall sign the following oath: "I do solemnly swear or affirm that I will 


faithfully perform my duties as an arbitrator in a fair and impartial manner without favor 


or affection to any party, and that I have not and will not have any ex parte 


communication regarding the facts and circumstances of the matters to be determined, 


other than communications with my fellow arbitrators, and will only consider, in making 


my determination, those matters which may lawfully come before me." 


 


36-36-115. Meetings of arbitration panel; duties; findings and recommendations; 


compensation  


 


(a)  (1) The arbitration panel appointed pursuant to Code Section 36-36-114 shall meet as 


soon after appointment as practicable and shall receive evidence and argument from the 


municipal corporation, the county, and the applicant or property owner and shall by 


majority vote render a decision which shall be binding on all parties to the dispute as 


provided for in this article not later than the sixtieth day following such appointment. The 


meetings of the panel in which evidence is submitted or arguments of the parties are 


made shall be open to the public pursuant to Chapter 14 of Title 50. The panel shall first 


determine the validity of the grounds for objection as specified in the objection. If an 


objection involves the financial impact on the county as a result of a change in zoning or 


land use or the provision of maintenance of infrastructure, the panel shall quantify such 


impact in terms of cost. As to any objection which the panel has determined to be valid, 


the panel, in its findings, may establish reasonable zoning, land use, or density conditions 







6 


 


applicable to the annexation and propose any reasonable mitigating measures as to an 


objection pertaining to infrastructure demands. 


 


(2) In arriving at its determination, the panel shall consider: 


 


      (A) The existing comprehensive land use plans of both the county and city; 


 


      (B) The existing land use patterns in the area of the subject property; 


 


      (C) The existing zoning patterns in the area of the subject property; 


 


      (D) Each jurisdiction's provision of infrastructure to the area of the subject property; 


 


      (E) Whether the county has approved similar changes in intensity or allowable uses 


on similar developments in other unincorporated areas of the county; 


 


      (F) Whether the county has approved similar developments in other unincorporated 


areas of the county which have a similar impact on infrastructure as complained 


of by the county in its objection; and 


 


      (G) Whether the infrastructure or capital outlay project which is claimed adversely 


impacted by the county in its objection was funded by a county-wide tax. 


 


(3) The county shall provide supporting evidence that its objection is consistent with its 


land use plan and the pattern of existing land uses and zonings in the area of the 


subject property. 


 


(4) The county shall bear at least 75 percent of the cost of the arbitration. The panel shall 


apportion the remaining 25 percent of the cost of the arbitration equitably between the 


city and the county as the facts of the appeal warrant; provided, however, that if the 


panel determines that any party has advanced a position that is substantially frivolous, 


the costs shall be borne by the party that has advanced such position. 


 


(5) The reasonable costs of participation in the arbitration process of the property owner 


or owners whose property is at issue shall be borne by the county and the city in the 


same proportion as costs are apportioned under paragraph (4) of this subsection. 


 


(6) The panel shall deliver its findings and recommendations to the parties by certified 


mail or statutory overnight delivery. 


 


(b)  If the decision of the panel contains zoning, land use, or density conditions, the findings 


and recommendations of the panel shall be recorded in the deed records of the county 


with a caption describing the name of the current owner of the property, recording 


reference of the current owner's acquisition deed and a general description of the 


property, and plainly showing the expiration date of any restrictions or conditions. 


 







7 


 


(c)  The arbitration panel shall be dissolved on the tenth day after it renders its findings and 


recommendations but may be reconvened as provided in Code Section 36-36-116. 


 


(d)  The members of the arbitration panel shall receive the same per diem, expenses, and 


allowances for their service on the committee as is authorized by law for members of 


interim legislative study committees. 


 


(e)  If the panel so agrees, any one or more additional annexation disputes which may arise 


between the parties prior to the panel's initial meeting may be consolidated for the 


purpose of judicial economy if there are similar issues of location or similar objections 


raised to such other annexations or the property to be annexed in such other annexations 


is within 2,500 feet of the subject property. 


 


36-36-116. Appeal  


 


The municipal or county governing authority or an applicant for annexation may appeal 


the decision of the arbitration panel by filing an action in the superior court of the county 


within ten calendar days from receipt of the panel's findings and recommendations. The 


sole grounds for appeal shall be to correct errors of fact or of law, the bias or misconduct 


of an arbitrator, or the panel's abuse of discretion. The superior court shall schedule an 


expedited appeal and shall render a decision within 20 days from the date of filing. If the 


court finds that an error of fact or law has been made, that an arbitrator was biased or 


engaged in misconduct, or that the panel has abused its discretion, the court shall issue 


such orders governing the proposed annexation as the circumstances may require, 


including remand to the panel. Any unappealed order shall be binding upon the parties. 


The appeal shall be assigned to a judge who is not a judge in the circuit in which the 


county is located. 


 


36-36-117. Annexation after conclusion of procedures; remedies for violations of 


conditions  


 


If the annexation is completed after final resolution of any objection, whether by 


agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or court order as a result of an appeal, the 


municipal corporation shall not change the zoning, land use, or density of the annexed 


property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service delivery 


agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and county and all 


required parties. Following the conclusion of the dispute resolution process outlined in 


this article, the municipal corporation and an applicant for annexation may either accept 


the recommendations of the arbitration panel and proceed with the remaining annexation 


process or abandon the annexation proceeding. A violation of the conditions set forth in 


this Code section may be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such conditions 


have expired as provided in this Code section. 


 


36-36-118. Abandonment of proposed annexation; remedies for violations of conditions  


 


If at any time during the proceedings the municipal corporation or applicant abandons the 







8 


 


proposed annexation, the county shall not change the zoning, land use, or density 


affecting the property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service 


delivery agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and county 


and all required parties. A violation of the conditions set forth in this Code section may 


be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such period has expired. After final 


resolution of any objection, whether by agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or any 


appeal from the panel's decision, the terms of such decision shall remain valid for the 


one-year period and such annexation may proceed at any time during the one year 


without any further action or without any further right of objection by the county. 


 


Summary 


 


The annexation and rezoning of the subject properties, as proposed, will create a change in 


zoning and land use that will result in a substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of 


the property and a change to a significantly different allowable use.  The subject properties are 


adjacent to the approximately 1,300 acres annexed by Fayetteville in 2013 to accommodate the 


further development of Pinewood Studios and surrounding areas to support the studio complex.  


On behalf of Fayetteville, Fayette County Development Authority and Fayette County, Historical 


Concepts, a local architectural firm, created a master plan for the 1,300 acres. The basics of the 


master plan anticipated an urban character and density encouraging mixed uses is close 


proximity and connectivity through sidewalks and multi-use paths.  The master plan suggested a 


system of grid pattern streets with blocks.  Transect Zones were created for a variety of 


development options for the blocks (see attached).  Transects T3 and T4 are being proposed by 


the developer.  The proposed development pattern for the subject properties is in keeping with 


the master plan and what was proposed for previously annexed adjacent property. Fire/EMS is 


opposed to the annexation due to the loss of revenue.  The Environmental Management 


Department indicates a loss of stormwater revenue if this parcel is to be annexed. 


 







R-70 R-70R-70R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70
R-70R-70


R-70R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


A-R


R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70 R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70
R-70R-70


R-70R-70R-70 R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70 R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70R-70


R-70 R-70R-70
R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70 R-70


R-70R-70
R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70S-Z


R-70
R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70 R-70


R-70
R-70R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70
R-70 R-70R-70


R-70R-70
R-70


R-70
R-70


R-70R-70


R-70


R-70R-70 R-70R-70
R-70R-70


R-70


R-70


R-70R-70 R-70R-70R-70


R-70


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


NA


Pierport & Pace Prop.
Zoning Map


Ve
ter


an
s P


kw
y Fayetteville


Sandy Creek Road


Pierport & Pace Prop.
Zoning Map


Pierport Property


Fayetteville


Fayetteville


Pace Property







CONSERVATION
AREAS


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL


CONSERVATION
AREAS


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


RURAL
RESIDENTIAL


Pierport & Pace Prop.
Land Use Plan Map


Ve
ter


an
s P


kw
y Fayetteville


Sandy Creek Road


Pierport & Pace Prop.
Land Use Plan Map


Pierport Property


Fayetteville


Fayetteville


Pace Property







Pierport & Pace Prop.
Aerials Map


Ve
ter


an
s P


kw
y Fayetteville


Sandy Creek Road


Pierport & Pace Prop.
Aerials Map


Pierport Property


Fayetteville


Fayetteville


Pace Property







































HISTORICAL CONCEPTS
ARCHITECTS, PLANNERS & PLACEMAKERSCopyright 2013 Historical Concepts


West Fayetteville Neighborhoods
Block Flexibility Diagrams


T2


The best way to begin answering this question is to study precedents and to gather the dimensions of  blocks that have worked in the past and continue to work today. 
By doing this, it is possible to see what dimensions accommodate the greatest range of  land uses and thus what blocks have the greatest staying power. 
However, even after studying hundreds of  blocks there is no exact answer to this question; instead, there is a range of  answers. 
In general, blocks should have sides between 240’ and 600’ in length with an overall perimeter of  less than 1,800’. These dimensions have been put to the test 
in towns and cities throughout history and have proven themselves to be resilient against changes in land uses and population densities.


Properly scaled blocks are important for a number of  reasons:
Land uses naturally change over time. Properly scaled blocks allow these changes to occur easily and efficiently without having to reconfigure the infrastructure that 
has already been put into place (principally streets and utilities). This maximizes the return on investment (both public and private).
They ensure a basic level of  connectivity and walkability. 
Smaller blocks create more street frontage which translates into more front yards, more front doors, and more storefronts. These components are a pre-requisite for  
the formation of  vibrant neighborhoods.
They streamline the development/redevelopment process. Old land uses can move out and new land uses can simply plug-in. This can also minimize the 
subdivision review process.


To illustrate the resourcefulness of  a properly scaled block, the diagrams below show how a 300’x500’ block (approximately 3.4 acres) can accommodate everything 
from farms and houses to office buildings and schools. The diagrams show how an initial investment in infrastructure can pay for itself  over and over again by 
responding to a multitude of  different purposes. As the town grows, the block is there to accommodate that growth.
As shown below, the 300’x500’ block is perfectly capable of  spanning all Transect Zones; in this case, zones T2 to T5 are illustrated. While the land uses and land 
intensities in the diagram vary, the block itself  does not have to.


Why are blocks important?How big should a block be?


T3 T4 T5


1.


2.
3.


4.


With garages and alley access on 
50’x124’ lots (6,200 sf)


 6 Detached Houses


With garages and alley access on 
24’x110’ lots (2,640 sf)


16 Townhouses


Office or retail
49,300 sf  Commercial


Off-street with additional on-street
48 Parking Spaces


With garages and alley access on 
24’x60’ lots (1,440 sf)


14 Townhouses


Office or retail
108,600 sf  Commercial


Off-street with additional on-street
48 Parking Spaces


On entire block
6.5 Units/Acre On entire block


8.1 Units/Acre


Office or retail
164,000 sf  Commercial


Off-street with additional on-street. 
Alternatively, the center of  the block 
could hold a 3-level parking deck with 
490 spaces.


112 Parking Spaces


Office or retail
67,700 sf  Commercial


Off-street with additional on-street
243 Parking Spaces


With garages and alley access on 
24’x140’ lots (8,400 sf)


12 Detached Houses


Office or retail
20,300 sf  Commercial


Off-street with additional on-street
16 Parking Spaces


On entire block
3.5 Units/Acre


With garages and alley access on 
60’x140’ lots (8,400 sf)


12 Detached Houses


With garages and alley access on 
24’x120’ lots (2,880 sf)


12 Townhouses


On entire block
 7 Units/Acre


With garages and alley access on 
70’x140’ lots (9,800 sf)


14 Detached Houses


On entire block
4.1 Units/Acre


With garages and alley access on 
100’x140’ lots (14,000 sf)


10 Detached Houses


On entire block
2.9 Units/Acre


With house, garage, storage shed, and 
3 acres of  farming plots


   1 Farm


On entire block
0.3 Units/Acre


Can you show me how this works?


SD


Education or corporate campus with 
limited parking for administration and 
staff


Small Campus


4,400 sf
  1 Church


Approximately 800 to 1,400 sf  each
14 Apartments





		Planning and Zoning- 475 Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Annexation 475 Veterans Parkway Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing on Ordinance 2015-05 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, 


as amended, specifically Section 110-3  Definitions, Section 110-25 A-R, Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 


Conditional Use Approval.


On April 24, 2014, the Board of Commissioners asked staff and the Planning Commission to evaluate the A-R wedding concept for 


possible amendments to the zoning ordinance.  This was in response to a property owner's request to have weddings on their farm.  


 


The amendments allow an A-R Wedding/Event facility in the A-R zoning District as a Conditional Use. 


 


Staff recommends approval of the amendments. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of the amendments. 


 


Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed amendments.  Brian Haren seconded the motion.  The motion passed 


3-1.  Bob Simmons voted in opposition to the motion. 


 


"Exhibit A" provides a red-lined version of the proposed changes.  "Exhibit B" provides the final form document requested for Board 


approval.


Adoption of Ordinance 2015-05 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as 


amended, specifically Section 110-3  Definitions, Section 110-25 A-R, Agricultural-Residential District, and Section 110-169 Conditional 


Use Approval.


Not Applicable.


Yes April 24, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, March 26, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #8







EXHIBIT A 


 


ORDINANCE 2015-05 A-R WEDDING 


RED-LINE VERSION OF PROPOSED CHANGES 











EXHIBIT B 


 


ORDINANCE 2015-05 A-R WEDDING 


FINAL FORM VERSION OF THE ORDINANCE 







 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - 05  


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 110. ZONING ORDINANCE, AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY SECTION 110-


3 DEFINITIONS, SECTION 110-25 A-R, AGRICULTURAL-RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 


AND SECTION 110-169 CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL  


 


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for 


the regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia 


shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as 


amended, is hereby further amended by adding in its entirety the following to Section 110-3 


Definitions: 


 


Wedding/event facility means a facility where weddings and other events are held.  


 
Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as 


amended, is hereby further amended by adding in its entirety the following to the list of 


Conditional Uses in Section 110-25 A-R, Agricultural-Residential District: 


 


A-R wedding/event facility; 


 


Section 3.  The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as 


amended, is hereby further amended by adding in its entirety the following to Section 110-169 


Conditional Use Approval: 


 


#. A-R wedding/event facility. The facility shall be utilized for private and public weddings 


and events by a third party who provides some form of consideration to the owner or 


his/her agent.  The facility shall not be utilized for concerts, sporting events, or vehicle 


racing. A horse show, rodeo, carnival, community fair, and/or religious tent meeting 


shall also be allowed as regulated in this Article and this section and the most restrictive 


conditions shall apply.  Allowed in the A-R zoning district.   


1. Minimum lot size: fifteen acres.   


2. These facilities shall not be permitted on a lot which accesses a road designated as 


an internal local road by the county thoroughfare plan and/or the County Engineer. 


3.  Facilities which access an unpaved County–maintained road are limited to 12 


wedding/events per calendar year.  A wedding/event permit from the Planning and 


Zoning is required prior to holding the wedding/event. 


4. A minimum 100 foot setback shall separate all buildings and areas utilized for 


weddings and events from any abutting residential zoning district. Otherwise all 







 


 


2


buildings and areas utilized for weddings and events shall meet the minimum A-R 


setbacks. 


5. Adequate off-street parking shall be required and a 50 foot setback shall separate 


parking areas from any abutting residential zoning district. 


6. Hours of operation for weddings and events shall be between the hours of 9:00 


a.m. and10:00 p.m. on weekdays and 9:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. on weekends.  


These hours of operation shall not limit the setup and cleanup time before and after 


the wedding or event.  


 7. All structures utilized for weddings and events shall meet all applicable building 


and fire codes.   


8. Sanitation facilities shall be approved by the Environmental Health Department. 


 9. Food service shall meet all state and local requirements. 


10. Tourist Accommodations shall not be allowed in conjunction with an A-R wedding 


and event facility. 


11, Tents shall require the approval of the county fire marshal. 


12. A sketch, drawn to scale, on a survey of the lot depicting all existing buildings and 


specific areas utilized for weddings and events and parking areas shall be required.  


In the event that 5,000 or more square feet of impervious surface is added in 


conjunction with a wedding and event facility, a site plan compliant with the 


Fayette County Development Regulations shall be required. 


 


Section 4.  That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


 


Section 5. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners 


that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 


phrase of this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for 


any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by 


the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 


the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, 


to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 


unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the 


Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, 


sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, 


enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 6. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 7.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 







 


 


3


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 So ordained this 26th day of March, 2015, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      CHUCK ODDO, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 





































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2015-05 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2015-05- A-R Wedding Event Backup

		1-Wedding

		2-Wedding

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2015-05- A-R Wedding Event Backup

		Wedding- Final Form












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina & Dennis Davenport


Public Hearing on Ordinance 2015-06 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, 


As Amended, Specifically Article VII. Zoning Board of Appeals and Article IX. Policies, Procedures, and Standards Governing 


Amendments.


On August 19, 2014, the County Attorney made a presentation to the Board of Commissioners concerning parliamentary and zoning 


procedures.  These proposed amendments are a result of that discussion and address rezoning procedures for the Planning Commission 


and Board of Commissioners, and procedures for the Zoning Board of Appeals.  


 


Staff and the County Attorney recommend approval of the amendments. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of the amendments. 


 


Bob Simmons made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed amendments. Brian Haren seconded the motion. The motion 


passed 4-1 


 


"Exhibit A" provides a red-lined version of the proposed ordinance amendments.  "Exhibit B" provides the final form ordinance document 


under consideration.


Adoption of Ordinance 2015-06 - an ordinance to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, As 


Amended, Specifically Article VII. Zoning Board of Appeals and Article IX. Policies, Procedures, and Standards Governing Amendments.


Not Applicable.


Yes Tuesday, August 19, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, March 26, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #9







EXHIBIT A 


 


ORDINANCE 2015-06 ZONING BOARD OF 


APPEALS 


RED-LINDED VERSION OF PROPOSED CHANGES 































































EXHIBIT B 


 


ORDINANCE 2015-06 ZONING BOARD OF 


APPEALS 


FINAL FORM VERSION OF THE ORDINANCE 







 


 


1


STATE OF GEORGIA 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2015 - 06 


 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, 


CHAPTER 110. ZONING ORDINANCE, AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE VII. 


ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS and ARTICLE IX. POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND 


STANDARDS GOVERNING AMENDMENTS 


 


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of 


Commissioners thereof; 


 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for 


the regulation of land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 


 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia 


shall be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 
Section 1. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as 


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Article VII. Zoning Board of Appeals in its 


entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


ARTICLE VII. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 


Sec. 110-238. Membership. 


Sec. 110-239. Rules and procedures. 


Sec. 110-240. Administrative assistance. 


Sec. 110-241. Public hearing. 


Sec. 110-242. Powers and duties. 


Secs. 110-243—110-262. Reserved. 


Sec. 110-238. Membership. 


(a) Membership and appointments. The zoning board of appeals shall consist of five members 


residing within the county and shall be appointed by the board of commissioners. None of the 


board members shall hold any other public office, except that one member may also be a member 


of the planning commission. The zoning board of appeals members shall be removed by the board 


of commissioners for cause, upon written charges, and after public hearing. Any member of the 


zoning board of appeals shall be disqualified to act upon a matter before the zoning board of 


appeals with respect to property in which the member has an interest. It may be deemed cause for 


removal should any zoning board of appeals member fail, without proper reason, to attend three 


consecutive meetings.  


(b) Term of office. The term of office for each member of the zoning board of appeals shall be for 


three years and the member shall remain on the board until reappointed or a successor is 


appointed. It is the intent of this section that their terms be staggered with no term limitation.  







 


 


2


(c) Compensation. The zoning board of appeals members shall receive compensation for their service 


as determined by the board of commissioners.  


(Code 1992, § 20-9-1; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 5, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-239. Rules and procedures. 


The zoning board of appeals shall elect one of its members as chairperson and another as vice-


chairperson, each serving for one year, or until re-elected, or a successor is elected. The vice-


chairperson shall have the authority to act as chairperson in the chairperson's absence. The zoning 


board of appeals shall appoint a secretary who shall be an employee of the county. The zoning board 


of appeals shall have authority to adopt rules of procedure.  Meetings of the zoning board of appeals 


may be held at the call of the chairperson. The chairperson may administer oaths and compel the 


attendance of witnesses by subpoena. The zoning board of appeals shall keep minutes of its 


proceedings, showing the vote of each member upon each question, or if absent or failing to vote, 


indicating such fact, and shall keep records of its examinations and other official actions, all of which 


shall be immediately filed in the planning and zoning department and shall be public record. The 


decisions of the zoning board of appeals shall contain a statement of the subject matter being 


considered by the zoning board of appeals, and the grounds for its decision reduced to written form. 


The full text shall be sent to the appellant/petitioner. 


(Code 1992, § 20-9-2; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 5, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-240. Administrative assistance. 


The planning and zoning department shall provide such technical, administrative, clerical 


assistance, and office space as is required by the zoning board of appeals to carry out its function 


under the provisions herein.  


(Code 1992, § 20-9-3; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 5, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-241. Public hearing. 


(a) Place, time, and date. The public hearings shall be conducted as follows:  


(1) Place: the county administrative complex. 


(2) Time and Date: Fourth Monday, 7:00 p.m. 


Any changes from the standard schedule for public hearings will be published in the newspaper which 


carries legal advertisements for the county in compliance with the requirements for public notification 


as provided herein.  


(b) Conduct of hearing. Public hearings shall be conducted with 20 minutes provided for the 


appellant/petitioner and proponents and 20 minutes provided for the opponents of an 


appeal/petition. An appellant/petitioner may reserve part of the allotted time for rebuttal.  


(c) Notice of hearing shall be given. Before making its decision on an appeal, a request for a 


variance, or any other matter within the zoning board of appeals' purview, the zoning board of 


appeals shall hold a public hearing thereon. A notice of the date, time and place of such hearing 


shall be sent to the appellant/petitioner by certified U.S. mail to the appellant/petitioner's last 


known address.  


(d) Public notice in newspaper. The zoning board of appeals shall cause public notice of the hearing 


to be published in the legal organ of the county, at least 15 calendar days but not more than 45 


calendar days, prior to the date of the public hearing.  







 


 


3


(e) Posting of signs.  


(1) A sign shall be posted on property. One sign is required for each street frontage of said 


property. The sign shall be posted consistent with the requirements for newspaper 


notification.  


(2) Signs used for posting property shall be a minimum of 18 inches by 18 inches and shall 


indicate the appeal/petition number, the time, date, and place of the hearing.  


(3) A refundable sign deposit shall be required for each sign at the time of filing the 


appeal/petition. 


(f) Who may appear. Any party may appear at the public hearing in person or by agent or attorney.  


(g) Zoning board of appeals' decision. The zoning board of appeals shall approve, deny, or table each 


appeal/petition by a public vote. An action to table shall include justification of such action and a 


specific meeting date at which the appeal/petition is to be reconsidered. If there is not a full 


zoning board of appeals board present at the public hearing, the appellant/petitioner may request 


to table the appeal/petition to the next zoning board of appeals public hearing, provided the 


appellant/petitioner requests to table the agenda item prior to the presentation. A new legal 


advertisement will be required with an announcement to a specific meeting date if an 


appeal/petition is tabled.  The property shall be reposted with new signage indicating the new 


public hearing dates.  


(h) Time limit on zoning board of appeals decision. The zoning board of appeals shall reach a 


decision following a public hearing within 45 calendar days or the appeal/petition shall be 


deemed approved.  


(i) "Writ of certiorari" (appeal). An appellant/petitioner has 30 calendar days from the date of the 


zoning board of appeals' decision to seek a "writ of certiorari" (appeal) with the superior court of 


the county.  


(Code 1992, § 20-9-4; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 5, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-242. Powers and duties. 


(a) Appeals from actions of the zoning administrator. The zoning board of appeals shall hear and 


decide upon appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement, decision, or 


determination made by the zoning administrator in the enforcement of these regulations.  


(1) Who may appeal. Appeals to the zoning board of appeals may be taken by any person 


aggrieved by any decision of the zoning administrator. Such appeals, specifying the grounds 


thereof shall be filed with the planning and zoning department no later than 30 calendar days 


after the date of notification of the zoning administrator's decision. The zoning administrator 


shall forthwith transmit to the zoning board of appeals all the papers constituting the record 


upon which the action appealed from was taken.  


(2) Legal proceedings stayed. An appeal stays all legal proceedings in furtherance of the action 


appealed from, unless the zoning administrator certifies to the zoning board of appeals that 


by reason of facts stated in the certificate a stay would, in the zoning administrator's opinion, 


cause imminent peril to life and property. In such a case, proceedings shall not be stayed 


otherwise than by a restraining order from a court of competent jurisdiction.  


(3) Extent of the zoning board of appeals' power. The zoning board of appeals may, in 


conformity with the provisions of these regulations, reverse or affirm the order, requirement, 


decision, or determination of the zoning administrator. The zoning board of appeals may 


direct the issuance of a permit. It shall be the duty of the zoning administrator to carry out 


the decisions of the zoning board of appeals.  







 


 


4


(b) Request for a variance. The zoning board of appeals may authorize, upon appeal in specific cases, 


a variance from the terms of these regulations as will not be contrary to the public interest where, 


owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of these regulations will, in an 


individual case, result in practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of these 


regulations shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done. 


However, no lot is eligible for a variance for reduction in lot size, lot width, or road frontage, 


unless the variance request is for an improved illegal lot. A variance shall not be granted for any 


requirements of a conditional use with the exception of a legal nonconforming conditional use 


(see article V of this chapter), or a use of land, building, or structure that is prohibited in the 


zoning district at issue, except as otherwise provided herein. In exercising the powers described in 


this subsection, the zoning board of appeals shall not consider any nonconforming use of 


neighboring lands, structures or buildings in the same zoning district, and no permitted use of 


lands, structures, or buildings in other zoning districts as grounds for the issuance of a variance.  


A variance may be granted in an individual case upon a finding by the zoning board of appeals 


that all of the following criteria exist:  


(1) There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular piece of 


property in question because of its size, shape or topography; and  


(2) The application of these regulations to this particular piece of property would create a 


practical difficulty or unnecessary hardship; and  


(3) Such conditions are peculiar to the particular piece of property involved; and 


(4) Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 


purposes and intent of these regulations; provided, however, no variance may be granted for 


a use of land, building, or structure that is prohibited herein; and  


(5) A literal interpretation of this chapter would deprive the applicant of any rights that others in 


the same zoning district are allowed.  


The zoning board of appeals may impose or require conditions, as may be necessary, to protect the 


health and safety of workers and residents in the community; to protect the value and use of property 


in the general neighborhoods; and provided that wherever the board shall find, in the case of any 


approval granted pursuant to the provisions of these regulations, that any of the conditions upon which 


such approval was granted are not being complied with, said zoning board of appeals shall rescind and 


revoke such approval after giving due notice to all parties concerned and granting full opportunity for 


a hearing.  


In addition to the above factors, if the variance being sought is for an improved lot which is smaller 


than the minimum lot size for its zoning district, more narrow than the minimum lot width required for 


its zoning district, or has less road frontage than is required for its zoning district and the lot is an 


illegal lot as opposed to a nonconforming lot, the zoning board of appeals may consider such a lot for 


a variance. Should the appellant/petitioner be successful in obtaining a variance, the resulting lot 


would, for the purposes of this chapter, be deemed to be a nonconforming lot. If the 


appellant/petitioner successfully passes the above enumerated factors, the zoning board of appeals 


shall also employ the following factors for an illegal lot seeking to be deemed a nonconforming lot:  


(1) The transaction giving the appellant/petitioner ownership in the subject property was more 


than five years from the date of the appeal/petition or if the period of ownership is less than 


five years the subject property was made illegal more than ten years from the date of the 


appeal/petition;  


(2) The appellant/petitioner is not the person, or an immediate family member of the person, 


who caused the subject property to be an illegal lot. For purposes of these procedures, 


"immediate family" is defined as the spouse, child, sibling, parent, step-child, step-sibling, 


step-parent, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece or nephew of the person who caused 


the subject property to be an illegal lot; and  







 


 


5


(3) No adjacent property is available to add to the subject property to allow the subject property 


to meet the minimum requirements for its zoning district. In determining whether adjacent 


property is available, if adding any adjacent property to the subject property would no longer 


allow the adjacent property to meet the minimum requirements of the adjacent property's 


zoning district, then the adjacent property is not available. Additionally, any adjacent 


property which is part of an illegal lot shall not be deemed available for purposes of these 


variance procedures, unless the adjacent illegal lot is unimproved and the entirety of the 


adjacent illegal lot is combined with the subject property. If adjacent property is available, 


the cost of acquiring the adjacent property shall not be a factor in determining the 


availability of the adjacent property.  


(c) Compliance with standards. Where an appeal/petition to the board is initiated due to an existing 


violation of this chapter and said appeal/petition is denied, the violation shall be required to be 


corrected within ten calendar days of such denial, or as specified by the board, if a greater time 


period is necessary. The maximum extension of the time shall not exceed 30 calendar days.  


(d) Forms. Appeals, requests for variances, or any other matter within the zoning board of appeals' 


purview shall be made on forms, as applicable, provided by the planning and zoning department; 


and all information requested on the forms shall be provided by the appellant/petitioner. Forms 


shall be filed with the planning and zoning department along with the necessary fees. No form 


shall be accepted by the planning and zoning department unless it contains all pertinent 


information and is accompanied by the required fee.  


(Code 1992, § 20-9-5; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 5, 5-24-2012; Ord. No. 2013-13, § 1, 9-26-2013)  


(e) Request for change of the legal nonconforming use of a structure. The zoning board of appeals 


may authorize, upon appeal in specific cases, a change in the legal nonconforming use of a 


structure in accordance with the provisions herein.  


(f) Request for extension or enlargement of the legal nonconforming use of a structure. The zoning 


board of appeals may authorize upon appeal in specific cases an extension or enlargement of an 


existing legal nonconforming use which the board is specifically authorized to consider under the 


terms herein. Said extensions may be granted in an individual case upon a finding by the board 


that all of the following criteria are present:  


(1) The use is a legal nonconforming use as defined in these regulations; and 


(2) The legal nonconforming use is in full compliance with all requirements of these regulations 


applicable to nonconformances; and  


(3) The extension of said legal nonconforming use will not further injure a permitted use on 


adjacent property.  


(g) Continuance of a legal nonconforming use. The zoning board of appeals may allow a legal 


nonconforming use to be re-established after discontinuance for six consecutive months where it 


is deemed by the zoning board of appeals that all of the following criteria are present:  


(1) The design, construction, and character of the land, building, or structure is not suitable for 


uses permitted in the zoning district in which the legal nonconforming use is situated; and  


(2) Undue hardship to the property owner would result in not allowing the continuance of a legal 


nonconforming use; and  


(3) Adjacent property would not be unduly damaged by such continuance; and 


(4) The use is to be identical to the prior legal nonconforming use. 


Secs. 110-243—110-262. Reserved. 


Section 2. The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, as 







 


 


6


amended, is hereby further amended by deleting Article IX. Policies, Procedures and 


Standards Governing Amendments in its entirety and replacing it with the following: 


 


 


ARTICLE IX. POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS GOVERNING 


AMENDMENTS 


Sec. 110-290. Intent. 


Sec. 110-291. Technical evaluation and qualification of properties. 


Sec. 110-292. Public hearings. 


Sec. 110-293. Initiation of amendments. 


Sec. 110-294. Limitation on re-applying and withdrawal. 


Sec. 110-295. Appeal. 


Sec. 110-296. Application for amendment. 


Sec. 110-297. Planning commission recommendation. 


Sec. 110-298. Public hearing before the board of commissioners. 


Sec. 110-299. Conditional approval. 


Sec. 110-300. Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation. 


Sec. 110-301. Public notification. 


Sec. 110-302. Zoning reversion. 


Sec. 110-303. Responsibilities of the zoning administrator. 


Secs. 110-304—110-324. Reserved. 


 


 


Sec. 110-290. Intent. 


The purpose of this article is to describe and establish procedures for making changes to the 


official zoning map (i.e., rezoning of properties) and amending the text of the ordinance from which 


this chapter is derived. Such actions require legislative approval by the board of commissioners in 


order to be enacted.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-1; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-291. Technical evaluation and qualification of properties. 


(a) Every petition for a legislative change shall be subject to a technical evaluation. The evaluation 


shall be conducted by the planning and zoning department which shall coordinate a review of the 


proposal with all appropriate county departments and public agencies. Following the evaluation, a 


report shall be prepared by the planning and zoning department containing recommendations to 


be presented to the planning commission and the board of commissioners.  


(b) The planning and zoning department shall distribute copies of applications for amendment to the 


planning commission and the board of commissioners. In addition, the members of the technical 


review committee (TRC) shall be supplied with copies of each application. Each department head 







 


 


7


or his/her designee shall return his/her comments, in writing, the planning and zoning department 


per the deadline established by the planning and zoning department.  


(c) Any lots affected by proposed rezonings which are initiated by a party other than the board of 


commissioners shall each be of sufficient size and shape to meet all requirements of this chapter, 


except as otherwise provided in article V of this chapter. Combination or division of lots, in 


accordance with county regulations, shall be accomplished as a condition of approval prior to the 


approval of any permits or applications.  


(d) A property improved with existing structures which would become nonconforming within the 


zoning district for which the rezoning is sought may be considered for rezoning (see article V of 


this chapter).  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-2; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-292. Public hearings. 


(a) Date, place, and time. The public hearings shall be conducted as follows:  


(1) Place: the county administrative complex. 


(2) Time and date: 


a. Planning commission: First Thursday, 7:00 p.m. 


b. Board of commissioners: Second and Fourth Thursdays, 7:00 p.m. 


Any changes from the standard schedule for public hearings will be published in the newspaper which 


carries legal advertisements for the county in compliance with the requirements for public notification 


as provided herein.  


(b) Conduct of hearing. Public hearings on amendments shall be conducted with  20 minutes 


provided for the applicant and proponents and  20 minutes provided for the opponents of an 


application for rezoning. An applicant may reserve part of the allotted time for rebuttal.  


(1) Decisions. Recommendations of the planning commission and decisions of the board of 


commissioners on applications for rezonings shall be made subsequent to the public 


hearings. 


(2) Minutes. The minutes of any public hearing shall be maintained with the zoning decision 


entered thereon. The minutes shall be kept as public records.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-3; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-293. Initiation of amendments. 


Applications to amend the text of this chapter may be initiated by the planning commission, the 


board of commissioners, staff, or by a member of the general public. The planning commission, the 


board of commissioners, a property owner, or the authorized agent of a property owner may initiate an 


application to amend the official zoning map (rezone property). When an agent is authorized to act on 


behalf of an owner, such certificate of authorization shall be notarized on the rezoning application. All 


information and required fees shall be received by the planning and zoning department by the deadline 


date for filing.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-4; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  







 


 


8


Sec. 110-294. Limitation on re-applying and withdrawal. 


If the zoning decision of the board of commissioners is to deny a rezoning of property, then an 


application for the same property may not be re-submitted for rezoning until the expiration of at least 


six months immediately following the date of denial. An application for a map amendment shall not be 


withdrawn by the applicant after the legal advertising as required herein, except as provided herein.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-5; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-295. Appeal. 


An applicant has 30 calendar days from the date of the board of commissioners rezoning decision 


to file an Appeal with the superior court of the county.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-6; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-296. Application for amendment. 


Any citizen filing an application to amend the text or the official zoning map may obtain an 


application from the planning and zoning department, Applications to amend the text or the official 


zoning map shall be submitted on forms, as applicable, provided by the planning and zoning 


department.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-7; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-297. Planning commission recommendation. 


 (a) The planning commission shall make a recommendation of approval, denial, table, or withdrawal 


without prejudice on each application.  


(1) An action to table shall include a justification of such action and a specific public hearing 


date at which the application is to be reconsidered.  


(2) If there is not a full board present at the public hearing, the petitioner may request to table 


the petition to the next planning commission public hearing, provided the petitioner requests 


to table the agenda item prior to the presentation. Only one (1) such request may be made. 


(3) When an application is tabled, a new legal advertisement will be required stating the new 


public hearing dates and the property shall be reposted with new signage indicating the new 


public hearing dates.  


(4) The planning commission may recommend amendments to the applicant's request which 


would reduce the land area of a rezoning petition (where possible with a legal description 


only), or change the zoning district requested to one which is less intense, and recommend 


conditions which may be deemed advisable so that the purpose of this ordinance will be 


served and the public health, safety, and welfare secured.  


 


 


(b) A resolution of the planning commission's recommendation shall be submitted to the board of 


commissioners. The resolution shall contain the recommendation of the planning commission, all 


grounds therefor, and shall be signed and approved by the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the 


planning commission.  


(c) If the planning commission fails to submit a report within 100 calendar days from the date of the 


acceptance of the completed amendment application, the application shall be forwarded to the 







 


 


9


board of commissioners with a positive recommendation. Actions of the planning commission 


which contribute to the delay, such as the lack of a quorum or a tabling of the petition initiated by 


the planning commission, shall count toward the 100 calendar days. Actions by the petitioner, 


such as a request to table or a request to table where there is less than a full board present, shall 


not count toward the 100 calendar days.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-8; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-298. Public hearing before the board of commissioners. 


(a) After receipt of the planning commission's resolution and recommendation on the proposed 


amendment, the board of commissioners shall hold a public hearing. The board of commissioners 


may approve, deny, table an application or allow an application to be withdrawn without 


prejudice with regards to the waiting period required by a denial.  


(1) An action to table shall include a justification of such action and a specific public hearing 


date at which the application is to be reconsidered.  


(2)  If there is not a full board present at the public hearing, the petitioner may request to table 


the petition to the next board of commissioners’ public hearing, provided the petitioner 


requests to table the agenda item prior to the presentation. Only one (1) such request may be 


made. 


(3)  When an application is tabled, a new legal advertisement will be required stating the new 


public hearing dates and the property shall be reposted with new signage indicating the new 


public hearing dates. 


(4) The board of commissioners may approve an amendment to the applicant's request which 


would reduce the land area of a rezoning petition (where possible with a legal description 


only), or change the zoning district requested to one which is less intense, and recommend 


conditions which may be deemed advisable so that the purpose of this ordinance will be 


served and the public health, safety, and welfare secured.  


 


(b) The decision of the board of commissioners shall be contained in a resolution. The resolution 


shall contain the decision of the board of commissioners, all grounds therefor, and shall be signed 


and approved by the chairperson or vice-chairperson of the board of commissioners. The clerk 


shall provide a copy of the resolution to the planning and zoning department, which copy shall 


become a part of the application file, and shall send one copy to the applicant by certified mail.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-9; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-299. Conditional approval. 


Any application for an amendment may be approved subject to conditions which relate to the use, 


occupancy, or development of the property contained in the petition. Conditions imposed on the 


property may only be more restrictive than the requirements of any zoning district and other applicable 


parts of this chapter as may apply to the property. The following policies shall apply:  


  


(1) Consent not required. Approval of applications subject to conditions may occur with or 


without the consent of the applicant.  


(2) Conditions shall be permanent. All conditions imposed by action of the board of 


commissioners shall remain on the subject property regardless of changes in ownership.  







 


 


10


(3) Changes to conditions. Conditions shall be changed only through the amendment process by 


which they were established.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-10; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-300. Standards for map amendment (rezoning) evaluation. 


All proposed map amendments shall be evaluated with special emphasis being placed on the 


relationship of the proposal to the land use plan and related development policies of the county The 


following factors shall be considered by the planning and zoning department, the planning commission 


and the board of commissioners when reviewing a request for rezoning:  


(1) Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the land use plan and policies contained 


therein;  


(2) Whether the zoning proposal will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 


nearby property;  


(3) Whether the zoning proposal will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or 


burdensome use of existing or planned streets, utilities, or schools;  


(4) Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development 


of the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the 


zoning proposal.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-11; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-301. Public notification. 


(a) Newspaper. Notice of scheduled hearings shall be published in the newspaper of general 


circulation within the county in which are carried the legal advertisements of the county.  


(1) The notice shall be published at least seven days prior to the public hearing before the 


planning commission, but not more than 45 calendar days, nor less than 15 calendar days 


prior to the public hearing before the board of commissioners. In the event that the time-


frames above cannot be met with one advertisement, the notice shall be published twice.  


(2) The notice shall contain the dates of the public hearings before the planning commission and 


the board of commissioners.  


(3) Public notification shall include at a minimum the time, date, place, purpose of the hearing, 


location, boundary description, area of the property, and the current and requested zoning 


classifications.  


(b) Posting of signs.  


(1) A sign shall be posted on property for which the rezoning is sought. One sign is required for 


each street frontage of said property. The sign shall be posted consistent with the 


requirements for newspaper notification.  


(2) Signs used for posting property shall be a minimum of 18 inches by 18 inches and shall 


indicate the application number, the time, date, place, purpose of the hearings, and the 


current and requested zoning classifications.  


(3) A refundable sign deposit shall be required for each sign at the time of application for 


rezoning.  


(c) Applicant notification.  







 


 


11


(1) Upon certification by the planning and zoning department that an application is complete, a 


notice giving the date, time, and place of the public hearings shall be provided by certified 


mail to the applicant.  


(2) The clerk to the board of commissioners shall notify the applicant by mail of any action 


(including tabling of action) taken by the board of commissioners. All actions of the board of 


commissioners shall be deemed to be effective as of the date of the action.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-12; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-302. Zoning reversion. 


Within three years of the date of rezoning, rezoned property shall be utilized for uses allowed in 


the new zoning district or substantial development shall be demonstrated toward such utilization. 


Failure to so utilize or demonstrate substantial development may subject the property to consideration 


for reversion to the previous zoning classification. In such event, public hearings shall follow the 


established procedures for rezoning petitions herein and a final decision shall be rendered by the board 


of commissioners.  


(Code 1992, § 20-11-13; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Sec. 110-303. Responsibilities of the planning and zoning department 


The planning and zoning department shall have the following responsibilities associated with 


receiving and processing all amendment applications:  


(1) Receive all applications and supporting information and collect all fees at the time of initial 


filing;  


(2) Maintain a log of all applications; 


(3) Return incomplete applications and all supporting information to the applicant upon 


determination that an application is incomplete with reasons for the determination;  


(4) If the application is complete, issue a notice that lists the dates, times, and places of all 


hearings that are scheduled for the application;  


(5) Establish and maintain a file for each application which shall contain: 


a. Copies of all materials submitted by the applicant; 


b. Correspondence, records, reports, and exhibits produced during processing; 


c. Minutes and all actions taken by the planning commission and the board of 


commissioners on an application; and  


d. All follow-up activities, if any, including re-filing of additional requests, copies of 


citations or violations and any other significant materials.  


(6) Prepare a map for all map changes (rezoning), which shall show the location and dimensions 


of the subject property of the petition, all properties within at least 1,000 feet of the subject 


property, and the zoning districts thereon;  


(7) Transmit to the appropriate departments within five working days after the deadline for 


submissions, all materials to be evaluated;  


(8) Schedule and provide notice for all public hearings, including the posting of the property, as 


required herein;  







 


 


12


(9) Transmit the recommendation of the planning commission to the board of commissioners at 


least 14 calendar days prior to the scheduled public hearing before the board of 


commissioners; and  


(10) Update the official zoning map. 


(Code 1992, § 20-11-14; Ord. No. 2012-09, § 6, 5-24-2012)  


Secs. 110-304—110-324. Reserved. 


 


 


 


Section 3.  That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 


incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 


 


 
Section 4. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all 


Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their 


enactment, believed by the Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and 


constitutional. 


 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest 


extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 


Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners 


that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 


this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 


phrase of this Article. 


 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for 


any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by 


the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 


the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, 


to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 


unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the 


Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, 


sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, 


enforceable, and of full force and effect. 


 


 
Section 5. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 


 


Section 6.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 


specified herein. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


13


 


 So ordained this 26th day of March, 2015, by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


 


      ____________________________ 


      Chuck Oddo, CHAIRMAN 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


CLERK/DEPUTY CLERK 


 


 


 





















































































		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2015-06 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2015-06 Zoning Board of Appeals Backup

		1- ZBA

		2-ZBA

		Zoning- Final Form

		Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2015-06 Zoning Board of Appeals Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing of Petition No. RP-055-15, Carter Rocky Fork, LLC., Owner, and Donna Black, Agent, request to approve of the Revision 


of the Recorded Final Plat for Rock Fork Subdivision to change Lot 15 from a building lot to a common area for a centralized mail kiosk 


and open space, with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 140 & 149 of the 5 District and fronting on Rocky Fork Boulevard. 


Staff recommends approval of Petition No. RP-055-15. 


 


Planning Commission Recommendation: Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of Petition RP-055-15.  Brian Haren seconded 


the motion.  The motion passed 4-0.   


 


Approval of Petition No. RP-055-15, Carter Rocky Fork, LLC., Owner, and Donna Black, Agent, request to approve of the Revision of the 


Recorded Final Plat for Rock Fork Subdivision to change Lot 15 from a building lot to a common area for a centralized mail kiosk and 


open space, with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 140 & 149 of the 5 District and fronting on Rocky Fork Boulevard.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Public Hearing
















































































































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Public Hearing of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC., Owner, Donna Black, Agent, request to rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S 


to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 49, 79 and 80 of the 7th 


District and fronting on Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road.  Staff recommends approval with one (1) condition.


Applicant proposes to develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision on 132.14 acres. 


 


Staff recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1243-15 with one (1) Condition. 


 


The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning Petition 1243-15 with one (1) Condition. 


 


The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim deed for 40 feet of right-of-way as measured from the 


centerline of Coastline Road prior to the approval of the Final Plat and said dedication area shall be shown on the Final Plat. 


 


Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of Petition 1243-15 with one (1) condition.  Bob Simmons seconded the motion.  The 


motion passed 4-0.  


Approval of Petition No. 1243-15, Fland Land, LLC., Owner, Donna Black, Agent, request to rezone 132.14 acres from R-70 to C-S to 


develop a Single-Family Residential Conservation Subdivision, with said property being located in Land Lot(s) 49, 79 and 80 of the 7th 


District and fronting on Lees Lake Road and Coastline Road, with one (1) condition.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Public Hearing







������������	�	�
��	������


�


��������������������������	������������	����
����������������������	����


�������	�
���
��	������������������������������������������	�


���	������ ��!��������������	�������������������������������������������


"��������	�����������������	��������������������	����������������������


���������	������������	����
�������������


�


#  $���������%�	��������������������	�����������������&�������



���������'����������	��	�����()�������������������������


�������	������������������������
������������	��������������


����������������&�����*������	����	�	�	����������������������


�������������&�����*��� ����������	
����	��������	��������


��������	�����
�������������������������������
�


���������	�����








































































































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Approval of a request from Mr. Morris Lewis, owner and developer of Trustin Lake Subdivision, to approve the change of a road name 


from Edna Ruth Lane to Trustin Lake Drive.


Trustin Lake Subdivision was submitted for final plat approval in May 2007.  During the process, the developers of Trustin Lake 


Subdivision changed the name to Claudia's Cove and the street to Edna Ruth Lane.  The final plat was approved by all departments and 


ready to record in October of 2007.  The developers held onto the final plats in order avoid property taxes, but lost the property in 


foreclosure.  The bank retained the property.  The property remained undeveloped and was not recorded until 2012, when the Bank of 


Georgia recorded the plats to market and sell to a developer.   


 


Morris Lewis Industries purchased the property and is presently building a home in the subdivision.  Mr. Lewis is requesting the Board of 


Commissioners to approve changing the street name from Edna Ruth Lane to Trustin Lake Drive.  A minor revision to a final plat is 


presently under administrative review, and the plat can not be approved until the street name change has been approved in official action 


of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  


 


The name of the street has been reviewed and agreed to by Emergency Services and E-911.  The U.S. Post Office will effect the change  


in order to identify route for mail delivery after approval by the Board of Commissioners. 


Approval of a request from Mr. Morris Lewis, owner and developer of Trustin Lake Subdivision, to approve the change of a road name 


from Edna Ruth Lane to Trustin Lake Drive.


Road signs will be the responsibility of the Owner/Developer of the the Trustin Lake Subdivision.  County already owns and maintains the 


road know as Edna Ruth Lane.


No


No


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


No


No


There are currently no homes located in the subdivision; however, one home is currently being built.


Thursday, February 26, 2015 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #11

































		Planning and Zoning- Trustin Lake Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Trustin Lake Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Trustin Lake Backup-1

		Planning and Zoning- Trustin Lake Backup-2

		Planning and Zoning- Trustin Lake Backup-3












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Works Phil Mallon


Discussion and consideration of staff's recommendation of a revised conceptual design and cost estimate for the Justice Center Park.  


This request was last discussed at the March 10, 2015 Board of Commissioners meeting.


Over the past few months, County staff has worked with Commissioner Brown and the Justice Center Park Committee to develop a 


conceptual design and cost estimate for existing green space around the Justice Center.  A concept was provided to the BOC at its 


meeting on March 10, 2015.  At that time the Board directed staff to reduce the project scope to paths and garden area and bring back to 


the Board at this meeting.   


 


During re-work of the concept, a recommendation was made by the Justice Park Committee, through Commissioner Brown, to reallocate 


the money set aside for this project to the Stonewall Fountain renovation.  Staff supports this recommendation. 


 


Provided as back-up to this request is a rendering with the amenities specified by the Board at the March 10th meeting and a cost 


estimate for construction.  The park, if constructed, would be operated by the Parks and Recreation Department and maintained by the 


Building and Grounds Department.  


Approval to reallocate $125,000.00 to the Heritage Park Fountain Restoration Project.


This project is an approved CIP for the Parks and Recreation Department with a budget of $125,000 (No. 5110H). 


Yes Tuesday, March 10, 2015


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Old Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #13







 
 


 


March 17, 2015 


 


From: Steve Brown 


 


To: Board of Commissioners 


 


Subject: Justice Center Park 


 


 


Following a meeting with County Administrator Steve Rapson and Public Works Director Phil 


Mallon, I offer the following comments on the status of the Justice Center Park proposal. 


 


At our last Board of Commissioners meeting, a park plan was presented that stayed within the 


confines of the allotted budget.  The plan was not acceptable to a majority of the 


commissioners. 


 


The Public Works Director produced a scaled-back version of what was formerly presented to 


the commissioners.  Unfortunately, the latest version really does not resemble what the Justice 


Center Park Committee had been working on for nearly a year.   


 


What was left on the plan does not adequately meet the minimum expectations of the previous 


plan.  The pavilion was the central element of the park and it no longer exists.  The garden as a 


feature does not stand well on its own.  The natural paths are not conducive for walking 


regarding Senior Citizens and strollers and they present significantly more maintenance issues. 


 


It is my recommendation that the Board of Commissioners transfer the allotted funds for the 


Heritage Park fountain restoration project. 


 


Thus far, the Public Art Committee has not been able to produce a noteworthy bid for the 


Heritage Park project because of insufficient funds.  It has also been determined that this 


project is better suited for a commissioned work rather than the RFP method because of the 


sensitivity surrounding the project. 


 


The fountain and plaza are obviously in need of a long overdue restoration.  The funds, in 


addition to the sculpture component, are needed for the water pumping system and new 


electrical work. 


 







Justice Center Park - Concept Cost Estimate


UNIT TOTAL


No. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY COST COST


PHASE 1


DESIGN & PERMITTING


1 Survey & staking - in-house LS 1 $0 $0


2 Engineering - Site Plan, ESCP, Stormwater Plan LS 1 $0 $0


3 NPDES Permit AC na $0


$0


SUN & SHADE GARDEN (0.5-acre clearing)


4 Clearing & Grubbing - Garden Area AC 0.7 $6,500 $4,550


5 Erosion Control LS 1 $500 $500


6 Minor grading for bed preparation (in-house labor, cost for topsoil) LS 1 $1,000 $1,000


7 Benches EA 2 $500 $1,000


8 Metal Trash Cans with Lids EA 2 $400 $800


9 Concrete curbing for landscape islands LF 1,200 $6 $7,200


10 Water Service for irrigation spigots LS 1 $5,000 $5,000


$20,050


PATH CONSTRUCTION (0.7 mile of natural path, 8-ft wide)


11 Brush removal & minor grading LS 1.0 $2,500 $2,500


12 Informational signs EA 5.0 $200 $1,000


13 Erosion Control LS 1 $500 $500


14 Drainage Pipe (18" HDPE), 20-ft sections each EA 4 $220 $880


15 Metal Trash Cans with Lids EA 3 $400 $1,200


16 Bollards EA 5 $200 $1,000


17 Metal Benches EA 3 $500 $1,500


18 Vegetative screening along back of Williamsburg Way homes LS 1 $1,500 $1,500


$10,080


Total $30,130


Assumptions


1.  Walking path is 8-ft wide, natural material (wood chips).  Approximately 0.7 miles.


2.  Sun & shade garden based on 0.7-acre cleared area with concrete edging (optional).


3.  Most work done by Fayette County.  No charge for labor and equipment.


4.  Water provided to garden in Phase 1.


5.  No ROW or easements and no bathrooms in cost estimates.


3/17/2015 M:\Public Works\Public Works Projects\Justice Center Park\Estimate of Cost.xlsx









		Public Works- Justice Center Park Agenda Request File

		Public Works- Justice Center Park Backup

		Justice Park Scale back MEMo

		Public Works- Justice Center Park Backup

		Estimate of Cost 3-26-15 BOC

		Justice Center Park REV














COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Solid Waste Vanessa Birrell


Public Hearing on the proposed issuance of a permit for an Inert Landfill Facility located at 221 First Manassas Mile Road, Fayetteville, 


Georgia 30214.


Fayette County has operated its own inert landfill under the Permit-by-Rule provisions of the Georgia Rules since 1990. Approximately 


1,200 tons of broken concrete, mud, gravel and dirt from road and water system repairs, and ditching 56 miles of gravel roads is disposed 


in the inert landfill each year.  This inert landfill is full and is now being closed.  Unlike the1990 permit by rule requirements, Fayette 


County must apply under stricter solid waste permit requirements to operate a new inert landfill. 


 


Approximately 3.5 acres of land within the the closed Northside Landfill on 1st Manassas Mile Road is well suited to stage the new inert 


landfill.  The location for the new inert landfill is close to the existing yard waste area; meaning both landfills can use the same equipment. 


This newly proposed inert landfill meets new, more stringent buffer requirements; specifically being 200 feet within the property 


boundaries.  Additionally, there is another 200 feet from the landfill boundary to the backyard property boundaries of Oak Street residents 


within the Deep Forest subdivision.  


      


It is anticipated to fill this landfill in three phases.  The first two phases will be below grade taking from 10 to 15 years to fill each.  The 


final phase will be above ground and will be approximately the same height as the capped landfill to the south.  Life expectancy of this 


facility is approximately 59 years based on present day inert tonnage amounts.


Approval of the proposed Inert Landfill Facility as presented by staff.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, February 27, 2014


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The public hearing is required by the Georgia Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Act, Section 12-8-24(d).


Public HearingThursday, March 26, 2015



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #10







 


 


Georgia Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Act of 1990 


Refer to Page 7 


 















 


 


GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES LETTER 


 







  


 


  


GEORGIA COMPREHENSIVE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ACT OF 1990 
 


AS AMENDED THROUGH 2004 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


An Abstract from 
 


OFFICIAL CODE OF GEORGIA ANNOTATED 
Volume 10 


Title 12 
Article 2 


Part 1 
Conservation and Natural Resources 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Georgia Department of Natural Resources 
Environmental Protection Division 


Land Protection Branch 
4244 International Parkway, Suite 104 


Atlanta, Georgia 30354 
404/362-2537 







  


7 


(8) To issue, amend, modify, or revoke orders as may be necessary to ensure and enforce compliance 
with this part and all rules or regulations promulgated under this part; 


(9) To institute, in the name of the division, proceedings of mandamus, injunction, or other proper 
administrative, civil, or criminal proceedings to enforce this part, the rules and regulations promulgated under 
this part, or any orders or permits issued under this part; 


(10) To accept, receive, administer, and disburse grants from public or private sources for the purpose of 
the proper administration of this part or for the purpose of carrying out any of the duties, powers, or 
responsibilities under this part; 


(11) To grant variances in accordance with this part and the rules and regulations promulgated under this 
part, provided that such variances are not inconsistent with any applicable federal act and rules or regulations 
promulgated under such federal act; 


(12) To require any person who is engaged in solid waste handling subject to the permit by rule 
provisions of this part to notify the division in writing, within a reasonable number of days which the director 
shall specify, of the location and general description of such activity, identify the solid waste handled, and give 
any other information which may be deemed relevant, under such conditions as the director may prescribe; 


(13) To render technical assistance to state, regional, and local governments and others in the planning 
and operation of solid waste handling; 


(14) To develop criteria and a system of priorities for the distribution of any state funds as may be 
available through a state grant-in-aid program to assist financially local governments and authorities in the 
planning, implementing, maintaining, or operating of solid waste handling systems which are consistent with 
local and regional solid waste management plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of this part; 


(15) To approve or disapprove projects for which loans or grants are made under any state or federal act 
to any municipality, county, authority, or agency of the state for the purpose of solid waste handling; provided, 
however, the financial review and approval or disapproval for a loan will be made by the Georgia 
Environmental Facilities Authority; 


(16) To develop environmental standards for solid waste management planning to assist local 
governments, authorities, and corporations in the preparation of local and regional plans prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of this part; 


(17) To advise and consult, cooperate, and contract with other agencies of this state, authorities, political 
subdivisions of this state, and other designated agencies, entities, persons, and corporations and with the 
governments of other states and the United States and their several agencies, subdivisions, or designated 
organizations and entities on matters concerning educating the public on all aspects of proper solid waste 
management; 


(18) To collect and disburse all fees and funds authorized or imposed by this article; 


(19) To collect fees related to the sale of new replacement tires and with such fees administer such 
programs as may be necessary to ensure that scrap tires are regulated from the point of generation to the 
point of ultimate disposal to protect public health and the environment; and 


(20) To exercise all incidental powers necessary to carry out the purposes of this part. 


(b) The powers and duties described in subsection (a) of this Code section may be exercised and 
performed by the director through such duly authorized agents and employees as he deems necessary and 
proper. 
 
§  12-8-24.  Permits for solid waste or special solid waste handling, disposal, or thermal treatment 
technology facility; inspection of solid waste generators  
 


(a) No person shall engage in solid waste or special solid waste handling in Georgia or construct or operate 
a solid waste handling facility in Georgia, except those individuals exempted from this part under Code 
Section 12-8-30.10, without first obtaining a permit from the director authorizing such activity. 


§  12-8-24.  Permits for solid waste or special sol§  12-8-24.  Permits for solid waste or special sol§  12-8-24.  Permits for solid waste or special solid waste handling, disposal, or thermal treatment 
technology facility; inspection of solid waste generators  







  


8 


(b)(1) No permit for a biomedical waste thermal treatment technology facility shall be issued by the director 
unless the applicant for such facility demonstrates to the director that a need exists for the facility for waste 
generated in Georgia by showing that there is not presently in existence within the state sufficient disposal 
facilities for biomedical waste being generated or expected to be generated within the state. For purposes of 
this part, "biomedical waste thermal treatment technology facility" means any facility that exists for the 
purpose of reducing the amount of biomedical waste disposed of through a process of combustion, with or 
without the process of converting such waste to energy. 


(2) Paragraph (1) of this subsection shall not apply to any biomedical waste thermal treatment 
technology facility which is operated exclusively by a private biomedical waste generator on property owned 
by the private biomedical waste generator for the purpose of accepting biomedical waste exclusively from the 
private biomedical waste generator so long as the operation of the biomedical waste thermal treatment 
technology facility does not adversely affect the public health or the environment.  After commencement of 
operation by a private biomedical waste generator of a biomedical waste thermal treatment technology facility 
which is permitted by but not included in a local or regional solid waste management plan, amendment of the 
local or regional solid waste management plan shall be required for any biomedical waste which is no longer 
to be disposed of by the private biomedical waste generator in its own biomedical waste thermal treatment 
technology facility prior to any substantial reduction in the amount of biomedical waste produced by the 
private biomedical waste generator and accepted by its own biomedical waste thermal treatment technology 
facility or the closure of such facility. 


(c) On or after March 30, 1990, any permit for the transportation of municipal solid waste from a jurisdiction 
generating solid waste to a municipal solid waste disposal facility located in another county shall be 
conditioned upon the jurisdiction generating solid waste developing and being actively involved in, by July 1, 
1992, a strategy for meeting the state-wide goal of waste reduction by July 1, 1996. 


(d) If the director determines that such activity will result in any violation of this part or any rule or regulation 
promulgated pursuant to this part, he shall deny the permit; otherwise, he shall issue the permit, specifying on 
the permit the conditions under which such activity shall be conducted; provided, however, that a public 
hearing shall be held by the governing authority of the county or municipality in which the municipal solid 
waste or special solid waste handling shall occur not less than two weeks prior to the issuance of any permit 
under this Code section and notice of such hearing shall be posted at the proposed site and advertised in a 
newspaper of general circulation serving the county or counties in which the proposed activity will be 
conducted at least 30 days prior to such hearing. 


(e)(1) The director may suspend, modify, or revoke any permit issued pursuant to this Code section if the 
holder of the permit is found to be in violation of any of the permit conditions or any order of the director or 
fails to perform solid waste handling in accordance with this part or rules promulgated under this part.  The 
director may modify any permit issued pursuant to this Code section in accordance with rules promulgated by 
the board.  All modifications of existing permits shall be classified by the board as either major or minor 
modifications.  All modifications of existing permits to allow vertical or horizontal expansion of existing 
disposal facilities, except a facility operated by a utility regulated by the Public Service Commission, shall be 
classified as major permit modifications and shall not be granted by the director sooner than three years from 
the date any such facility commenced operation; provided, however, that a permit may be modified by the 
director to allow a vertical or horizontal expansion one time within three years from the date the facility 
commenced operation so long as the capacity of the facility is not increased more than 10 percent. 


(2) Prior to the granting of any major modification of an existing solid waste handling permit by the 
director, a public hearing shall be held by the governing authority of the county or municipality in which the 
municipal solid waste facility or special solid waste handling facility requesting the modification is located not 
less than two weeks prior to the issuance of any permit under this Code section and notice of such hearing 
shall be posted at the site of such facility and advertised in a newspaper of general circulation serving the 
county or counties in which such facility is located at least 30 days prior to such hearing. 


(3) Except as otherwise provided in this part, major modifications shall meet the siting and design 
standards applicable to new permit applications in effect on the date the modification is approved by the 
director; provided, however, that a facility may be granted a variance by the director from those standards 
when vertically expanded unless such variance is inconsistent with federal laws and regulations; provided, 


(d) If the director determines that such activity will result in any violation of this part or any rule or regulation 
promulgated pursuant to this part, he shall deny the permit; otherwise, he shall issue the permit, specifying on 
the permit the conditions under which such activity shall be conducted; provided, however, that a public 
hearing shall be held by the governing authority of the county or municipality in which the municipal solid 
waste or special solid waste handling shall occur not less than two weeks prior to the issuance of any permit ot less than two weeks prior to the issuance of any
under this Code section and notice of such hearing shall be posted at the proposed site and advertised in a 
newspaper of general circulation serving the county or counties in which the proposed activity will be
conducted at least 30 days prior to such hearing. 







 


 


Map of Newly Proposed Inert Landfill 


 









		Solid Waste- Public Hearing I...dfill Agenda Request File

		Solid Waste- Public Hearing Inert Landfill Backup

		1

		2

		3

		Solid Waste- Public Hearing Inert Landfill Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Fayette County Water System Matt Bergen


Proclamation of April 2015 as "Safe Digging Month in Fayette County."


Governor Nathan Deal has proclaimed April as "Safe Digging Month" in Georgia. 


 


Safe Digging Month is designed to bring awareness to the damage, loss of service, environmental damage, and threat to public safety 


caused by those who have not located underground lines prior to digging. 


 


Damage prevention is a shared responsibility.  By using safe digging practices, contractors and homeowners in Fayette County can save 


time and money while keeping everyone's infrastructure safe and connected. 


 


The Federal Communications Commission has designated a "8-1-1" call line that provides contractors and homeowners with a simple 


number to contract utility operators to request the location of underground lines at the intended dig site.


Proclamation of April 2015 as "Safe Digging Month in Fayette County."


Not Applicable


Yes April 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Thursday, March 26, 2015 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation / Recognition #4







 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


               


     Safe Digging Month     
 


A proclamation 


WHEREAS,  Thousands of times each year, the underground infrastructure in Georgia is damaged 


by those who do not have underground lines located prior to digging, resulting in 


service interruption, environmental damage and threat to public safety; and 


WHEREAS, In 2005, the Federal Communications Commission designated 811 to provide 


contractors and homeowners a simple number to contact utility operators to request 


the location of underground lines at the intended dig site; and 


WHEREAS, The Fayette County Utility Coordinating Committee, a stakeholder-driven 


organization dedicated to the prevention of damage to underground utilities in 


Georgia, promotes the National 811 notification System in an effort to reduce these 


damages; and 


WHEREAS, Damage prevention is a shared responsibility by using safe digging practices, the 


contractors and homeowners of Fayette County can save time, money and help keep 


our infrastructure safe and connected; and 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS do hereby proclaim, on 
behalf of Fayette County, the month of April 2015 as 
 


Fayette County Safe Digging Month 
 
and encourage contractors and homeowners throughout Fayette County to always call 811 before digging.  
Safe digging is no accident!! 


 


So proclaimed this 26th day of March 2015, 


        


         
 
 
              


                      CHARLES W. ODDO, Chairman 
    





		Water System- Safe Digging Month Agenda Request File

		Water System- Safe Digging Month Backup







